
                           
              
1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  Regular meeting  9 March 2015 
 Business Arising from Minutes 
 
3. OPENING REMARKS OF COUNCIL 

3.1 Declaration of Conflict of Interest 
 
4. DELEGATIONS 
4.1  Eriskay Drive/Iona Avenue RFP T-2015-004 Cindy Millican 
 (Refer to Item 9.1) 
 
4.2 2014 Audited Rothesay Financial Statements Treasurer Doug MacDonald, CPA, CA, CFP 
 Auditors  Teed Saunders Doyle & Co. Peter Logan, CPA, CA 
 (Time extension granted by Deputy Mayor and refer to Item 9.2) 
 
5. CORRESPONDENCE FOR ACTION 
5.1 18 March 2015 Request for support from Saint John Dragon Boat Festival 
Approve request 
5.2 9 April 2015 Memorandum from Town Manager Jarvie RE:  Designated highway funding 
 2 April 2015 Letter from Department of Transportation and Infrastructure to UMNB RE: 

Municipal Designated Highway Program Supplementary Funding 
 Draft Response to Department of Transportation and Infrastructure to UMNB RE: 

Municipal Designated Highway Program Supplementary Funding 
Approve response 
5.3 3 April 2015 Letter from a resident RE:  water charges 
Refer to Town Manager for a response and Utilities Committee for information 
 
6. CORRESPONDENCE - FOR INFORMATION 
6.1 10 March 2015 Copy of letter from Minister Kenney (DoELG) to Quispamsis RE:  

Waste Packaging and Paper Stewardship Program 
6.2 10 March 2015 Letter from NB Childrens Foundation RE:  grant applications 
6.3 13 March 2015 Letter from Fundy Regional Service Commission RE:  thanks for 

support of Blue Bin depot program 
 

ROTHESAY 
COUNCIL MEETING 
Rothesay Town Hall 

Monday, April 13, 2015 
7:00 pm 
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ROTHESAY 
Regular Council Meeting 
Agenda -2- 13 April 2015 
 
7. REPORTS 
7.0 April 2015  Report from Closed Session 
7.1 31 December 2014 Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police Commissioners Audited 

Financial Statements (2014) 
 28 January 2015 Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police Commissioners 

(KRJBPC) meeting minutes 
 31 December 2014 KRJBPC Statement of Financial Position (pre-audit) 
 26 February 2015  KRJBPC meeting minutes 
 31 January 2015  KRJBPC Statement of Financial Position (pre-audit) 
 28 February 2015 KRJBPC Statement of Financial Position (pre-audit) 
7.2 11 February 2015 Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department (KVFD) Board meeting 

minutes 
 31 December 2014 KVFD Statement of Operations with budget variances 
 11 February 2015 KVFD Chief’s Report 
 31 December 2014 KVFD Response Report (year end) 
7.3 31 December 2014 Kennebecasis Public Library Audited Financial Statements (2014) 
 18 February 2015 Kennebecasis Public Library Board meeting minutes 
 February 2015 KPL Librarian’s Report 
 31 December 2014 Draft Comparative Income Statement 
7.4 28 February 2015 Draft Rothesay Utility Fund Financial Statements 
 28 February 2015 Draft Rothesay General Fund Financial Statements 
7.5 17 March 2015 Draft Parks and Recreation Committee meeting minutes 
7.6 18 March 2015 Draft Public Works and Infrastructure Committee meeting minutes 
   2015-2020 Sidewalk Plan 
   Golf Club Court/East Riverside-Kingshurst Park crosswalk 

7.7 18 March 2015 Draft Utilities Committee meeting minutes 
7.8 30 March 2015 Draft Planning Advisory Committee meeting minutes 
   2110 Rothesay Road (Cash in lieu of LPP) 

7.9 March 2015 Building Permit Summary Report 
  
8. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
        
TABLED ITEMS 
8.1 Traffic By-law 1-14 (Tabled June 2014) 
No action at this time 
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ROTHESAY 
Regular Council Meeting 
Agenda -3- 13 April 2015 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS 
BUSINESS ARISING FROM DELEGATIONS 
9.1 Eriskay Drive/Iona Avenue RFP T-2015-004 
 7 April 2015 Letter from C. Millican 
 Refer to Public Works and Infrastructure Committee 
 
9.2 2014 Audited Rothesay Financial Statements 
 10 April 2015 Memorandum prepared by Treasurer MacDonald 
 DRAFT 2014 Audited Rothesay Financial Statements 
 
 9.2.1 2014 Rothesay Annual Report 
 DRAFT Annual Report 
  
FINANCE 
9.3 Municipal Capital Borrowing Board (water line expansion Gondola Point Road) 
 9 April 2015 Memorandum prepared by Treasurer MacDonald 
 
OPERATIONS 
9.4 Heated storage construction – Master Drive 
 7 April 2015 Memorandum prepared by DO McLean 
 
9.5 T-2015-001A:  Four Wheel Drive Backhoe 
 7 April 2015 Memorandum prepared by DO McLean 
 
9.6 T-2015-001C: Compact Track Loader 
 7 April 2015 Memorandum prepared by DO McLean 
 
ADMINISTRATION 
9.7 Snow clearing and Rothesay Common artificial ice surface (hockey) 
 1 April 2015 Email from Counc. MacDonald 
 
10. NEXT MEETING 
 Public Hearing – Water By-law Monday, May 11, 2015 
 Regular Meeting   Monday, May 11, 2015  
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
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See Agenda item 9.2 for detailed financial statements 
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 Differences between final audited financial statements and 
monthly operating financial statements 
1. Consolidated – includes operating results and balance 

sheets of the Town general funds (capital and operating), 
water and sewer utility funds (capital and operating), 
reserve funds, and the proportionate share of the jointly 
controlled entities (KRJBPC, KVFD and KPL) 

2. Capital asset purchases are reflected as asset additions 
even if the expenditure is financed from operating 
revenue 

3. Amortization is recorded on all capital assets except for 
land – asset disposals recorded as an expense 

4. Debt repayments are not reflected as an expense 
5. Liabilities are recognized for pension, sick leave and 

retirement allowances as determined by the actuary 
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2014 2013 2012 

KRJBPC 41.02% 41.07% 42.77% 
KVFD 41.65% 41.57% 43.41% 
KPL 40.05% 40.05% 43.30% 

Jointly Controlled Entities 

Allocations are determined based upon funding formulas and 
contracts – change in percentage ownership resulted in a 
increase in net equity of $1,413 ($189,015 decrease in 2013) 
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Consolidated Financial Statements 
Year Ended December 31, 2014 
Highlights 

Budget Actual 
Revenue: 2014 2014 2013 2012 

Property tax warrant  $  14,246,284   $  14,246,281   $  14,073,003   $  13,886,175  

Water and sewer user fees         2,363,044         2,412,895         2,271,412        2,155,413 

Unconditional grant            209,567            209,568             315,881            405,273  

Conditional Government transfers              55,592         1,336,347             642,597            763,188 

Other revenues            703,243            931,004          1,434,652         1,426,770  

Total revenue  $  17,577,730   $  19,136,095   $  18,737,545   $  18,636,819  

Conditional Government transfers includes Gas Tax funds used during the 
year ($830,000 vs $470,000), ACOA and Designated Highway funds 
 
Other revenue decrease due to drop in Town Hall rent and developer 
contributions in 2013. 
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 Comments re revenue 
◦ 1.23% increase in property tax warrant 
◦ 2.12% increase in total revenue 
 
 

 
2014 2013 2012 

Property tax rate $1.19 $1.19 $1.19 
Municipal Tax base $1,197,166,750 $1,182,605,300 $1,166,905,450 
Property tax 
warrant 

$14,246,281 $14,073,003 $13,886,175 

2014 2013 2012 
Annual sewer rate $320 $300 $285 
Base water rate per 
cm 

$1.00 $0.90 $0.90 

Total revenue $2,412,895 $2,271,412 $2,155,413 
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Consolidated Financial Statements 

Year Ended December 31, 2014 

Highlights 

Budget Actual 

Expenditures 2014 2014 2013 2012 

General government services  $   2,047,959  $    1,598,344   $    1,703,586   $    1,598,651  

Protective services        4,278,630         4,254,824         4,178,935         4,106,934  

Transportation services        4,673,940         5,859,229         4,819,857         5,440,766  

Environmental health services            715,000             710,520             686,719            661,786 

Environmental development services            547,200             426,342             414,983             374,187  

Recreation and cultural services        2,249,273         2,215,255         2,331,416         2,063,464  

Water and sewer services        2,421,564         2,432,314         2,147,986         2,524,178  

Total expenditures  $  16,933,566   $  17,496,828   $  16,283,482   $  16,769,966  

Transportation fluctuation due to capital asset transactions 

2015Apr13OpenWeb_010



2015Apr13OpenWeb_011



Capital Asset Continuity  

2014 2013 
Opening NBV balance $72,694,995 $72,509,074 
Asset additions     7,704,724     3,865,761 
Amortization   (3,488,481)   (3,321,163) 
Asset disposals   (1,060,549)       (88,188) 
Change in ownership *          1,749     (270,489) 
Closing NBV balance $75,852,438 $72,694,995 

Proceeds on disposal $  30,866 $   20,387 
Loss on disposal $1,029,683 $   67,801 

* Jointly controlled entities 
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Additions NBV “loss” 
Green Road $ 1,330,000 $ 165,000 
Hampton Road    1,640,000   430,000 
Gondola Point Road    1,160,000   235,000 
Maiden Lane       610,000    50,000 
French Village Road       610,000    50,000 

Water Plant    1,270,000 

Renforth Park       420,000     5,000 

Capital transactions by major projects 
(expenditures in 2013 and 2014) 
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2014 2013 2012 
Non-financial 
assets 

$75,916,837 $72,743,714 $72,570,026 

Net debt $11,983,614 $10,451,171 $12,542,531 
Equity $63,933,223 $62,292,543 $60,027,495 
Net debt per capita $1,003 $875 $1,050 

Balance Sheet 

General Water & Sewer 
Ratio of debt service 
costs to total 
expenses 

5.21% 22.64% 

Maximum allowable 20% 50% 

Debt service cost 
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2014 2013 2012 
General fund $5,926,000 $3,722,000 $4,431,000 
Water & sewer $7,376,449 $6,800,653 $7,245,032 
KRJBPC $594,790 $637,344 $705,277 

Long term debt 

Rothesay KRJBPC KVFD Total 
Sick leave $ 9,000 $  5,455 $273,068 $  287,523 

Retirement allowance $306,000 $304,845  $146,150 $  756,995 

Pension $345,200 $467,956 $487,597 $1,300,753 

Rothesay share of Accrued Benefits 

New debt    – Recreation (Library) - $ 2,575,000 
      - Transportation -          $    305,000 
      -  Water plant -  $ 1,000,000 
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ROTHESAY 

INTEROFFICE MEMORANDUM 

  

TO  : Deputy Mayor Grant & Council 
FROM  : John Jarvie 
DATE  : 9 April 2015 
RE  : Designated Highways Funding Proposal 

Attached please find a memorandum from the Department of Transportation and Infrastructure 

proposing a new approach to the funding of designated highways in municipalities. Also 

attached is a proposed response. 

There is some urgency to this response and the decision of the Department if work is to be 

done during the 2015 construction season. I have reviewed the matter with the Director of 

Operations and I believe we would potentially benefit by the implementation of the changes if 

the Department agrees that the five-year plan can be modified to include the components listed 

in the memorandum. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the attached draft letter be sent to the Department of Transportation and 

Infrastructure with any changes required by Council incorporated. 
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Rothesay Letterhead 

…2 

14 April 2015 

New Brunswick Transportation & Infrastructure 

P. O. Box 6000 

Fredericton, NB 

E3B 5H1 

Attention: Robert Sharpe, Director, Design Branch 

Dear Mr. Sharpe: 

Re: Municipal Designated Highway Program - 

Supplementary Funding 

Rothesay Council has reviewed your memorandum of April 2nd sent to 

the municipal associations.  The following are some observations in 

response. 

Philosophy 

The concept of municipalities contributing to the cost of provincial highway 

improvements does not seem unreasonable at a high level given that local 

traffic constitutes a significant portion of traffic on designated highways. 

The significant increase in the funds available for designated highways is a 

positive step in addressing a growing infrastructure deficit in the provincial 

road network. 

The adoption of the proposed approach requiring municipalities to cost 

share a responsibility which is heretofore been solely that of the Province, 

may be considered to be premature in the context of provincial/municipal 

transfers. For example, some municipalities may prefer the $25 million be 

added to the core funding formula for the Community Funding Grant. 

It is quite possible that the total required expenditure on Designated 

Highway improvements is greater than the annual $65-70 million figure in 

the PowerPoint presentation. Municipalities have adapted to the preferences 

expressed by the administrators of the program over the years and not 

included elements such as curb and gutter, storm sewer and culvert 

replacement in the five year plan. If in fact the Government intends that 

such improvements are eligible under the program, the five year plans need 

to be reviewed and such aspects of projects included. 
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R Sharpe DTI 2 14/04/15 
Proposed Designated Highway Funding 

…3 

It is unclear what justifies the variation in contribution amongst the cities, 

towns and villages and why local service district property taxpayers are not 

asked to contribute to the improvements in their area. 

Application of the Proposed Policy 

The five year plans need to be open to modification from year to year in the 

fall as priorities are identified within the following year’s budget and to 

incorporate  aspects such as culvert replacement, ditching, storm sewer and 

curb and gutter that typically have not been included in approved projects. 

We believe many municipalities have not been submitting full cost of 

projects as the Department’s policy has been to limit designated highway 

funding to recapping. The other items listed have likely been paid by the 

municipalities independently and/or may not be included in the 

submissions for the five-year plan.  To illustrate: 

Rothesay has applied for a grant in the amount of $220,000 for repaving 

of a section of Route 100.  In the Town’s capital budget an amount of 

$95,000 is also allocated to selectively replace curb.  In other words 

Rothesay has budgeted to pay 30% of the total project cost. 

There is nothing in the policy that relates to how priorities are to be 

established amongst municipal projects. The reliability of funding from year 

to year and the ability to predict and depend on future funding allocations is 

important to good management of municipal resources. 

Timing 

There are several difficulties with the timing of this announcement for its 

application in 2015: 

1. municipalities have already prepared and submitted their budgets 

and set their tax rates so finding the additional funds to match the 

provincial contribution may be a challenge for some; 

2. unless a decision to adopt such a policy is made quickly, it will be a 

unlikely that the money can be spent 2015. (This was a common 

problem in the past and it would be preferable if municipalities were 

advised of their funding in the previous year for proper budget.) 

Rothesay Council applauds the Department for looking at creative 

ways to address the growing deficiencies in the condition of provincial 

designated Highway. Assuming an early adoption of this revised policy 

and the capacity to modify the project to include all its components, 

Rothesay will move forward with the project listed for 2015 in its five 

year capital improvement plan.  
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R Sharpe DTI 3 14/04/15 
Proposed Designated Highway Funding 
 

 

We are capable of administering such a project with Town staff and 

would not be drawing on the administrative resources of the 

Department. This is of course dependent on timely approval for the 

project. 

Thank you for providing the opportunity to comment on this 

important proposal.  We look forward to a response to our capital 

funding request. 

Yours truly, 

John Jarvie, MCIP, RPP 

Cc : Hon. Roger Melanson, Minister 

Ted Flemming, MLA 

Rothesay Mayor & Council 

  Sadie Perron, Acting Deputy Minister 

Dale Forster, ADM and Chief Engineer 

Raymond Murphy, E/D, UMNB 
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w w w . n b c h i l d r e n . c o m

Questions & Answers:
Q1. Who can apply for funding?

All charitable organizations with 
a federally registered number and 
municipalities can apply for funding.	

Q2. Where do I get an application form?

You can contact our office or go to 
our website to obtain a copy of the 
application form.

Q3. What are the close dates for new 
applications?

Application close dates are sixty days 
in advance to the award months of 
February, May, August and November.  
(Ex: December 1 is the close date for 
the February award month.)

Q4. How much funding can I request?

The New Brunswick Children’s 
Foundation may award up to a 
maximum of 75% of the total cost 
of your project/ program.   The 
remaining 25% must be fundraised 
from sources other than federal and 
provincial governments.

 www.nbchildren.com
66 Waterloo St., Suite 205, Saint John, NB E2L 3P4
Tel. 506-635-1260   Email. info@nbchildren.com

Toll free (from within N.B.) 1-800-664-6777
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Overview

The New Brunswick Children’s 
Foundation provides financial grants to 
assist federally registered charitable 
organizations and municipalities 
that are engaged in caring and 
administrating to needy children and 
children with special needs.  The 
grants are designed to enhance 
the quality of life of New Brunswick 
children, 18 years and under.

The fifteen-member Board of Directors 
represent all communities of the 
province.

Grants are awarded yearly - February, 
May, August and November.  
Applications need to be received sixty 
days in advance of the award months.
  

Past Grant Recipients

•Bathurst & Area School Milk Fund

•Crescent Valley Resource Centre 
(CVRC)

•Miramichi Valley Bible Camp

•Charlotte Co. Boys & Girls Club

•Fredericton Arts & Learning Inc.

See more on our website

New Brunswick 
Children’s Foundation

			   			 
 

 Our Mission

The New Brunswick Children’s Foundation 
enhances the lives of children in New 
Brunswick challenged by health, social or 
economic issues.  We do this  by making 
informed strategic investments in community 
driven organizations that they can leverage to 
assist these children through the provision of 
programs and services.

Our Vision

Our vision is one of strategic, informed 
investments.  We believe that through 
partnering with effective service provision 
organizations, investing in their growth and 
monitoring their success, we can multiply the 
impact of our resources on the well-being 
and self-fulfillment of the children of New 
Brunswick.  In turn, we envision that the 
same investment will motivate and enable 
children to become leaders of tomorrow.

Our Values

In carrying out our mission we will always 
keep the child at the center and we will value

Caring for the most vulnerable
Healing the hurt vulnerable children feel
Investing in responsible and productive activity
Leading our community to a better tomorrow
Developing the potential in every child 
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD
OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

ADDRESS ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO:

126 MILLENNIUM DRIVE
QUISPAMSIS, N.B.
E2E 6E6

TELEPHONE: (506) 847-6300
FAX: (506) 847-6313
E-MAIL: krpfadmin@nbpolice.ca

March 26, 2015

Mayor and Councilors
Town of Rothesay
70 Hampton Road
Rothesay, N.B.
E2E 5L5

Dear Mayor and Councilors:

Please find enclosed a copy of the Audited Financial Statements of The
Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police Commissioners for the year 2014.

Also enclosed are the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of February, 2015 as well
as the Financial Statements.

We trust this meets with your approval.

Stephen N. McIntyre, M.O.M.
Chief of Police

/d Is

Gary Clark
Chairperson

lIAR 3 12015

TO SERVE FAITHFULLY
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KErNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

FINANCL4L STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & Co.
Chartered Accountants
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

CONTENTS

Page

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 1- 2

FINANCIAL STATEMBNTS

Statement of Financial Position 3

Statement of Operations 4

Statement of Changes in Net Debt 5

Statement of Cash Flows 6

Notes to Financial Statements 7 - 19

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & CO.
Chartered Accountants
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39 Canterbury Street

SAUNDERSNew Brunswick

DOYLE & Co.Tel (506) 636-9220
Chartered AccountantsFax (506) 634-8208

E-mail tsdsj@tsdca.com Independent member of DFK International

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of the Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police Commissioners
We have audited the statement of financial position of the Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of PoliceCommissioners as at December 31, 2014 and the statements of operations, changes in net debt and cashflows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatoryinformation.

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements inaccordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control asmanagement determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. Weconducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standardsrequire that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonableassurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures inthe financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including theassessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud orerror. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’spreparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that areappropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness ofthe entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policiesused and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating theoverall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis forour audit opinion.

Fredericton PartnersSaint John Partners
— Brian J. Saunders Jeffrey E. SaundersAndrew P. Logan Peter L. Logan

John H. Landry Kenneth H. KyleJean-Marc Poirier
T.J. Smith
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of the Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police
Commissioners (cont’d)

Opinion

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
the Commission as at December 31, 2014 and the results of its operations and changes in net debt for the
year then ended in accordance with Canadian blic sector accounting standards.

L9I

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

Saint John, NB
March 25, 2015

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & Co.
2. Chartered Accountants
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Q1a

FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash (Notes 2, 3 and 4) $ 536,824 $ 431,537
Accounts receivable (Notes 2 and 3)

General 21,554 10,887
Federal Government and its agencies (Note 5) 82,785 95,029

Investments (Notes 2, 3, 6 and 8) 745,786 605,829

S 1.386.949 $ 1.143.282

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued

liabilities (Notes 2 and 3) S 378,968 $ 312,574
Long term debt (Notes 2, 3 and 7) 1,450,000 1,552,000
Accrued sick leave (Note 2) 13,299 12,850
Accrued liability for vested retirement

benefits (Notes 2 and 8) 743,163 688,015
Post employment benefits payable (Notes 2 and 9) 1.140.800 1,283,400

3.726,230 3.848,839

NET DEBT (2.339,281) (2.705,557)

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets (Notes 2 and 11) 3,407,401 3,306,649
Accumulated amortization (Notes 2 and 11) (1.161.976) (1,041,192)

2,245,425 2,265,457

Unamortized debenture costs (Note 2) 7,016 5,368
Prepaid expenses 45,319 52,948

2,297.760 2.323J73

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT $ (41.521) $ (381.784)

COMMITMENTS (Note 10)

APPROVE

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & CO.
3. Chartered Accountants
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR TI{E YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Z14
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

REVEMTE (Note 2)
Contributions by member municipalities $ 5,546,515 $ 5,546,512 $ 5,364,228
Other (Note 14) 279,230 314.826 321.343

5.825.745 5,861.338 5.685.571

EXPENDITURE (Notes 2 and 14)
Crime control 3,964,836 3,855,860 3,707,157
Vehicle fleet 299,214 277,915 352,427
Property 304,911 316,131 312,336
Administration 800,680 788,994 804,336
Telecommunications 304.200 306.357 293.714

5.673.841 5.545,257 5,469.970

ANNUAL SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR
BEFORE UNREALIZED GAINS ON
INVESTMENTS 151,904 316,081 215,601

UNREALIZED GAINS ON INVESTMENTS 24,182 24.182 11.512

ANNUALSURPLUSFORTHEYEAR(Note 12) $ 176.086 340,263 227,113

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT -

BEGINNING OF YEAR (381,784) (608.897)

ACCUMULATED DEFICIT - END OF YEAR $ (41.521) $ (381.784)

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & CO.
4. Chartered Accountants
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Z14

Annual surplus $ 340,263 $ 227,113

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (132,510) (179,118)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 2,200 5,500
Amortization of tangible capital assets 148,542 163,560
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,800 4,004

360.295 221,059

Acquisition of prepaid assets (45,319) (52,948)
Use of unamortized debenture costs (1,648) 2,684
Use of prepaid assets 52.948 60,795

5,981 10.531

Decrease in net debt 366,276 231,590

Net debt - beginning of year (2.705.557) (2.937.147)

Net debt - end of year $ (2.339.281) $ (2.705,557)

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & CO.
5. Chartered Accountants
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR TifE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

21A

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AN]) CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPERATING TRANSACTIONS
Annual surplus $ 340,263 $ 227,113
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,800 4,004
Unrealized gains on investments (24,182) (11,512)
Amortization of tangible capital assets 148,542 163,560
Receivable - General (10,667) 13,795
Receivable - Federal Government and its agencies 12,244 (29,489)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 66,394 76,787
Accrued sick leave 449 12,850
Accrued liability for vested retirement benefits 55,148 36,013
Post employment benefits payable (142,600) 2,500
Change in unamortized debenture costs/prepaid expenses 5,981 1 0,531

453.372 506.152
CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (132,510) (179,118)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 2,200 5,500

(130,310) (173.618)
FINANCING TRANSACTION

Longterm debt (102,000) (97,000)

INVESTING TRANSACTION
Increase in investments (115,775) (130.681)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 105,287 104,853

CASH AN]) CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 431,537 326,684

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS-EM) OF YEAR $ 536.824 $ 431.537

REPRESENTED BY:
Cash- operating $ 531,932 $ 379,215
Cash - investments 4,892 52,322

$ 536.824 $ 431.537
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

1. PURPOSE OF THE ORGAMZATION

The Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police Commissioners (the ‘Commission”) provides
police services to the region consisting of the Town of Quispamsis and Rothesay. Effective March
31, 2014, the Commission changed its name to the Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police
Commissioners.

2. SUNMARY OF SIGNifICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Commission are the representations of management prepared in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local government, as
recommended by the Public Sector Accounting Board (“PSAB’) of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada.

The focus of PSAS financial statements is on the financial position of the Commission and the
changes thereto. The Statement of Financial Position includes all of the assets and liabilities of the
Commission.

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Commission are as follows:

Budget

The budget figures contained in these financial statements were approved by the Board on October
7, 2013 and the Minister of Local Government on February 26, 2014.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. In subsequent periods,
equity instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains
and losses reported in income. All other financial instruments are reported at amortized cost, and
tested for impairment at each reporting date. Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale, or issue of
financial instruments are expensed when incurred.

The investments of the Commission are held in the custody of TD Waterhouse Canada Inc.

Unamortized Debenture Costs

Bond discounts are amortized over the life of the respective serial debenture.

Revenue Recognition

The contributions from the member municipalities are recognized as they are earned for the police
and 911 services provided to the region, when the amount to be received can be reasonably
estimated and collection is reasonably assured. Interest and sundry income are recorded on an
accrual basis, when the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is
reasonably assured.

Expenditure Reconition

Expenditures are recorded on an accrual basis.
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’d)

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of the fmancial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector accounting
standards requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements
and the reported amount of revenue and expenditure during the reporting period. These estimates
are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in eamings in the
period in which they become known. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Examples of significant estimates include:
- providing for amortization of tangible capital assets;
- the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets;
- the recoverability of tangible capital assets;
- accrued vested retirement benefits; and
- accrued post employment benefits.

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset. The cost of the tangible
capital assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset type Years
Land improvements 10-20 years
Buildings 20-40 years
Vehicles 3-5 years
Machinery and equipment 10 years
Information technology equipment 3-5 years
Furniture & fixtures 20 years

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.

Post Employment Benefits

The Commission recognizes its obligations under post employment benefit plans and the related
costs, net of plan assets. The Commission has a vested retirement benefit as documented in Note 8
and a pension plan as documented in Note 9.

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Commission is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a
comprehensive risk management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks. The
following analysis provides information about the Commission’s risk exposure and concentration as
of December 31, 2014:
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOAR]) OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont’d)

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations. The
Commission is exposed to credit risk from its accounts receivable. The Commission’s credit risk is
mitigated by the fact that its accounts receivable consist primarily of funds due from the Federal
Government and the contributing municipalities.

iJqidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities. The Commission is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its receipt of
funds from its accounts receivable, long term debt, accounts payable and accrued liabilities and
other obligations.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk to the Commission’s earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign
exchange rates and the degree of volatility of these rates. The Commission is not exposed to foreign
currency risk as it does not hold foreign currencies.

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a
change in the interest rates. In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the
Commission manages exposure through its normal operating and financing activities. The
Commission is not exposed to interest rate risk as its long term debt does not have a variable interest
rate.

4. CASH

Z14

Cash - operating $ 531,932 $ 379,215
Cash - investments (Note 8) 4,892 52.322

$ 536.824 $ 431.537

5. DUE FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AND ITS AGENCIES

aQu

Canada Revenue Agency (HST refund) $ 42,784 $ 43,842
RCMP 40,001 51.187

$ 82.785 $ 95.029
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KEEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

6. INVESTMENTS

Z14

Canadian short term notes $ 377,502 $ 261,727
Canadian equity 335,355 335,355
Unrealized gain on investments 32,929 8,747

$ 745.786 $ 605.829

The Commission has an investment policy in place to administer the governance of these
investments. As at December 31, 2014, the investments were in compliance with the policy.

7. LONG TERM DEBT

Balance Issued Redeemed Balance
January 1, during during December 31,

Z14 ar 14

New Brunswick Municipal Financing Corporation

Debentures:
AR 52-2004 2.75% - 4.8%,

due 2014, OIC # 02-66, 03-53 $ 531,000 S - $ 531,000 $ -

AT 63-2005 3.75% - 4.375%,
due2OlS,OIC#03-53 1,021,000 - 64,000 957,000

BL45-2014 1.2%-3.1%,
due 2024, OIC# 02-66, 03-53 493.000 493,000

$ 1.552.000 $ 493.000 $ 595.000 $ 1.450.000

Principal payments required during the next five years are as follows:

2015 $ 1,002,000
2016 46,000
2017 47,000
2018 48,000
2019 49,000

In 2015, debenture AT 63-2005 will mature with a fmal amount due of $95 7,000, however $890,000
of this payment is expected to be refinanced during that year.

8. ACCRUED LIABILITY FOR VESTED RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Police officers and administrative employees earn 1.5 days of sick leave for every month of service
to a maximum of 250 days. In total, the maximum is 2,000 hours (based on an 8 hour day). At
retirement, an employee is entitled to choose either 50% of his or her sick leave in salary to a
maximum of 125 days (1,000 hours), or one month’s salary for each five years of service (or fraction
thereof) to a maximum of six month’s salary. The Board has restricted the use of the investments
(Notes 4 and 6) to cover the future obligations under this plan.
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

8. ACCRUED LIABILITY FOR VESTED RETIREMENT BENEFIT (contd)

An actuarial valuation was performed as at July 31, 2013 on the plan for 41 police officers and
administrative employees in accordance with PSA 3250 & 3255. The actuarial method used was the
projected unit credit method. The following summarizes the major assumptions in the valuation:

- Discount rate used was 6%;
- Salary increases 3% per annum; and
- retirement age 57 years old.

The activity for the year is as follows:
Zi4

Balance at beginning of year $ 688,015 $ 652,002
Add: Vested retirement expense 65,799 75,076
Less: Retirement benefits paid (10.651) (39.063)

Balance at end of year $ 743.163 $ 688.015

The actuarial valuation estimates the accrued benefit obligation to be $632,326. The $110,827
actuarial gain is being amortized over 15 years, which represents the expected average remaining
service life of the related employees.

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE

The Commission and its employees participate in the New Brunswick Municipal Employees
Pension Plan (‘NBMEPP”). The NBMEPP is a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
administered by a board elected by the members under the provisions of the Municipalities Act of
New Brunswick. The NBMEPP provides pensions based on length of service and best average
earnings.

Actuarial valuations for funding purposes are performed either annually or triennially depending on
the financial position of the NBMEPP (currently annually). In turn, the actuarial valuations for
accounting purposes are based on these figures (with adjustments). The most recent actuarial
valuation was prepared as at December 31, 2012 and resulted in an overall NBIVIEPP accrued
benefit obligation of $85,323,300 based on the accounting basis.

The actuarial valuation for accounting purposes was based on a number of assumptions about future
events, such as inflation rates, interest rates, wage and salary increases and employee turnover and
mortality. The assumptions used reflect management’s best estimates. The following summarizes
the maj or assumptions in the valuation as at December 31, 2013:

- the expected inflation rate is 2.3 5% (prior 2.3 5%);
- the discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation is 5.6% (prior 5.5%);
- the expected rate of return on assets is 5.6% (prior 5.5%);
- retirement age varies by age and employment category; and
- estimated average remaining service life (EARSL) is 14.0 years (prior 15.1 years).
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO F1NANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont’d)

The actuarial valuation prepared as at December 31, 2012 indicated that the present value of the
accumulated plan benefits exceeded the market value of the net assets available for these benefits.
The pension plan has been granted a solvency deficiency exemption by the Province of New
Brunswick. On a going concern valuation basis, the actuarial valuation indicated a plan deficit of
$11,581,900, a decrease of $1,047,700 from the December 31, 2011 deficit of $12,629,600. Based
on the assumptions as at December 31, 2012, the actuary expected the level of employer and
employee contributions to be sufficient to fund the deficit in less than fifteen years, as allowed by
the Pensions Benefits Act.

As at December 31, 2012, the NBMEPP provides benefits for 171 retirees. Total benefit payments
to retirees and terminating employees during 2014 are estimated to be approximately $2,745,900
(actual 2013 - $2,678,900) in totality for the NBMEPP.

Employees make contributions using rates that vary by earnings level and employment category,
with an overall average contribution rate of approximately 7.6%. Each municipality contributes an
amount that equals their employees’ contribution amounts. Pension Fund Assets are invested in
Short Term Securities, Bonds, Canadian Equities and Foreign Equities. Combined employees and
municipalities contributions for 2014 are estimated to be approximately $5,456,800 (actual 2013 -

$5,3 06,000) in totality for the NBMEPP.

The following summarizes the NBMEPP data as it relates to the Commission:

- The average age of the 42 active employees covered by the NBMEPP is 41.2;
- Benefit payments were $283,900 in 2013 and were estimated to be $290,400 in 2014; and
- Combined contributions were $563,800 in 2013 and were estimated to be $580,000 in 2014.

In addition to determining the position of the NBMEPP as it relates to the Commission as at
December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013, NBMEPP’s actuary performed an extrapolation of the
December 31, 2013 accounting valuation to determine the estimated position as at December 31,
2014. The extrapolation assumes assumptions used as at December 31, 2014 remain unchanged
from December 31, 2013. The extrapolation also assumes assets return of 5.6%, net of all fees and
expenses. If experience is different than assumed, amounts will be adjusted to reflect actual
experience. Results of the extrapolation are as follows:

Estimated
Janl,2014to Janl,2013to
Dec3l.2014 Dec3l,2013

Accrued Benefit Liability
Accrued benefit liability at beginning of period $ 1,283,400 $ 1,280,900
Adjustment to 2013/2012 actual (19,200) 10,400
Pension expense for the year 167,000 264,600
Employer contributions (290,400) (272,500)

Accrued benefit liability at end of period $ 1.140.800 $ 1.283.400

In summary, the Accrued Benefit Liability as it related to the Commission is estimated to be
$1,140,800 as at December 31, 2014. This compares to $1,280,900 as at January 1, 2013 and
$1,283,400 as at December 31, 2013. The December 31, 2013 liability was estimated in the prior
year. The actual liability was calculated to be $1,264,200. The difference of $19,200 has been

TEEDrecorded in the current year. SAUNDERS
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont’d)

The financial position as it relates to the Accrued Benefit Liability is shown as follows and
illustrates the unamortized amounts being recognized in Pension Expense over time:

Estimated
Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to
Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Funded Stafts at End of Period
Accrued benefit obligation S 10,358,100 $ 9,679,500
Plan assets 9,452.000 8.668.100

Plan deficit 906,100 1,011,400
Adjustment to 2013 actual 19,200
Unamortized experience gains 234.700 252,800

Accrued benefit liability at end of period $ 1.140.800 $ L283.400

The following illustrates the reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation from the beginning of
period to the end of period:

Estimated
Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to
Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation
Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 9,679,500 $ 8.792,300
Current service cost 423,200 421,400
Benefit payments (290,400) (283,900)
Interestforperiod 545,800 487,400
Experience gain during period 2623

Accrued benefit obligation at end of period $1 0.358.100 $ 9.679,500

The following illustrates the reconciliation of plan assets from the beginning of period to the end of
period:

Estimated
Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to
Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Plan Assets
Plan assets at beginning of period $ 8,668,100 $ 7,104,200
Employer contributions 290,400 281,900
Employee contributions 290,400 281,900
Benefit payments (290,400) (283,900)
Return on plan assets during period 493.500 1,284.000

Plan assets at end of period $ 9,452.000 $ 8.668.100
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

9. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont’d)

Total Expense related to pensions include the following components:

Estimated
Janl,2014to Janl,2013to
Dec 31. 2014 Dec 31. 2013

Pension Expense
Employer current service cost $ 132,800 $ 139,500
Interest on Accrued Benefit Obligation 545,800 487,400
Expected return on assets (493,500) (398,400)
Amortization of unrecognized balances -

Experience (gain) loss (18,100) 26.300

Pension expense $ 167.000 $ 254.800

The Pension Expense is included in the Statement of Operations. The 2013 pension expense was
estimated to be $264,800. The difference between the 2013 estimated and actual expense has been
recorded as an expense of the current period.

10. CO1VIMITMENTS

Communications Services

The Board has entered into an agreement with the City of Saint John to provide dispatch service to
the Kennebecasis Valley and surrounding area. The future minimum annual payment over the next
year is $303,900.

Operating Lease

The Board leases office equipment which have been accounted for as operating leases. The future
minimum lease payments over the next two years are:

2015 $ 3,599
2016 600

Janitorial Services

The Board has entered into an agreement to provide janitorial services. The future minimum annual
payments over the next three years are:

2015 $ 19,404
2016 20,004
2017 20,004
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

14. REVENUE ANI) EXPENDITURE SUPPORT

Z014 14
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

OTHER REVENUE
Provincial secondments $ 210,230 $ 193,844 S 203,424
Fees for public services 40,000 54,704 51,615
Investment income 23,000 26,646 22,587
Taxi and by-law 6,000 3,833 5,075
Other - 35,799 38,642

$ 279.230 $ 314.826 $ 321.343

CRTME CONTROL
Salaries $ 3,078,664 53,008,774 $ 2,841,327
Employee benefits 547,360 437,504 533,490
Training 38,000 56,528 28,526
Telephone and mobile radios 45,000 44,795 41,821
Equipment 20,000 16,614 16,099
Office 17,000 16,212 19,625
Equipment leasing and repairs 12,750 13,659 10,603
General supplies 28,000 34,153 31,960
Insurance 10,687 10,687 19,628
Uniforms 49,500 70,763 49,294
Public relations 9,000 7,246 6,959
Detention of prisoners 25,320 25,955 25,835
Taxi and traffic bylaw 500 103 526
Public safety 28,000 27,946 26,692
Special investigation 29,000 58,866 27,776
Amortization 26,055 26,055 26,996

$ 3.964.836 $ 3.855,860 $ 3.707.157

VEhICLE FLEET
Fuel $ 115,000 $ 104,359 $ 107,965
Repairs and maintenance 85,000 85,399 108,415
Insurance 22,241 22,241 48,925
Equipment for vehicles 21,500 10,443 15,203
Amortization 53,673 53,673 67,915
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,800 1.800 4.004

$ 299.214 $ 277.915 $ 352.427

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & CO.
1 8. Chartered Accountants
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE
COMMISSIONERS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

14. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT (cont’d)

ZQI4 ZiA
Budget Actual Actual

(Note 13)

PROPERTY
Taxes $ 43,575 $ 40,237 $ 41,464
Repairs and maintenance 58,500 70,651 66,770
Heat and power 47,000 37,107 41,347
Insurance 5,022 5,022 8,460
Grounds 9,000 22,042 8,848
Interest expense 70,316 69,574 74,114
Debenture cost amortization 2,684 2,684 2,684
Amortization 68.814 68.814 68,649

$ 304.911 $ 316.131 $ 312.336

ADMINISTRATION
Salaries $ 573,443 $ 581,831 $ 559,233
Employee benefits 91,250 78,509 100,161
Professional fees 41,000 34,333 39,877
Insurance 1,188 1,188 6,935
Travelandtraining 13,000 11,906 10,813
Board expenses 5,000 3,445 2,879
Labourrelations 10,000 11,077 9,362
Bank service fees

- 906 -

Provision for vested retirement benefits 65,799 65799 75,076

$ 800.680 $ 788.994 $ 804.336

TELECOMMUNICATIONS
Communications fee to City of

Saint John (Note 10) $ 303,700 $ 303,683 $ 294,836
Employee benefits (recovery) 500 2.674 (1.122)

$ 304.200 $ 306.357 $ 293.714

TEED
SAUNDERS

DOYLE & CO.
19. Chartered Accountents
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD
OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

ADDRESS ALL CORRESPONDENCE TO:

126 MILLENNIUM DRIVE
QUISPAMSIS, N.B.
E2E 6E6

Gary Clark
Chairperson

TELEPHONE: (506) 847-6300
FAX: (506) 847-6313
E-MAIL: krpfadmin@nbpolice.ca

KEN N EBECASIS

KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL 3OINT BOARD
OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

MEETING HELD AT
REGIONAL POLICE FORCE HEADQUARTERS BUILDING

126 MILLENNIUM DRIVE
QUISPAMSIS, NEW BRUNSWICK

ON THURSDAY, FEBRUARY 26, 2015
AT 4:00 P.M.

REGULAR MEETING

PRESENT: Bill McGuire
Gordon Friars
Matt Alexander
Emil Olsen
Cherie Madill
Debi Stewart

Gary Clark
Carolyn LeBlanc
Danny Dobson
Linda Sherbo
Chief Stephen McIntyre

ABSENT: Peter Bourque

The Chair, Mr. Clark brought the Regular meeting to Order and requested a
Motion for the Approval of the Agenda for the meeting of February 26, 2015. Moved
by Matt Alexander and Seconded by Gordon Friars, MOTION CARRIED.

Mr. Clark requested a Motion for the Approval of the Minutes of the Regular
Meeting of January 28, 2015. Moved by Carolyn LeBlanc and Seconded by Bill
McGuire. MOTION CARRIED.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST — Mr. Clark asked if there were any Conflicts of Interest to
be declared. None were declared and the meeting continued.

TO SERVE FAITHFULLY
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Kennebecasis Regional Joint
Board of Police Commissioners
February 26, 2015
Page 2

REGULAR MEETING

SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT

Ms. Madill presented the Financial Statements for the period ending December 31,
2014.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSmON
Cash balance is $531,000 as compared to last year at this time in the amount of
$379,000. Some of the reasons for this difference is the City of Saint John had an
outstanding bill we had not received in the amount of $75,000 and some of the larger
purchases that were done in December, the cheques were not cashed until January.

Liability - $386,000 the majority of this figure is current accounts payable.

Sick Pay/Retirement Investments in the amount of $750,000 is the fair market value.

Accounts Receivable - This category comprises the secondments and some deposits
that were made in January.

Sales Tax recoverable — This is for the last 6 months of 2014.

Sickleave replacement - This has been slightly increased to reflect the increase in
salaries in 2014.

Accrued Pension Liability - $1,140,000 as compared to $1,283,000 for 2013. This fund
is doing better and our liability portion has gone down.

Debenture Payable — One of the debentures on the building will be up in 2015 and we
will be obtaining another in the amount of $970,000 and we will go to the bank for
interim financing until we obtain the new debenture from the Province.

Cherie reviewed the Schedule of Tangible Capital Assets pointing out all additions to the
Capital Assets and these are listed at the bottom of the statement as well as the
disposals.
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Kennebecasis Regional Joint
Board of Police Commissioners
February 26, 2015
Page 3

REGULAR MEETING

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS (Pre-Audit

Cherie reviewed the line items and gave explanations for any increases over what was
budgeted and reasons for line items being under budget.

Fees — This category is higher than budgeted. Some reasons being overtime paid to
our officers when seconded or on projects with other agencies. Also some of our
members have attended training facilities and taught courses and we have been
reimbursed for their salaries and expenses.

Taxi-Bylaw — Under what had been budgeted.

Interest Income, Retirement interest & Dividends and Secondments - We budgeted
slightly higher than what had been received. In 2014 we budgeted for one of our
seconded officers not only salary but also benefits. The Secondment M.O.U. stipulates
salary and overtime for this officer and not benefits.

Expenditures - The items in this category is what has caused the surplus for 2014. The
Crime Control Salaries are under budget by $69,000 because we had two officers out,
one on Maternity Leave and the other on LTD. These officers were replaced by Term
Employees who are paid at a lower hourly rate of pay. Also our Victim Services
coordinator retired in early fall and has not been replaced. Subsequently our benefits
are lower than budgeted as well.

She pointed out a new column has been added Actual to Budget Variance which better
explains where the surplus is coming from.

Ms. Madill reviewed line by line the Statement of Operations and explained why some
line items were over budget.

Surplus as at December 31, 2014 is $117,000. There were some adjustments to be
made to this as some bills were taken back that were received after she had closed the
books. The auditors are also making these adjustments as well. This resulted in a
surplus of $110,000.
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Kennebecasis Regional Joint
Board of Police Commissioners
February 26, 2015
Page 4

REGULAR MEETING

Telecom Fund — This has a deficit of $2,100 due to the retirees’ health insurance.

Ms. Madill then reviewed the Statement of Operations indicating the PSAB Changes with
capitalization.

Notes are contained on Page 7 explaining the Statement of Financial Position and
Statement of Operations.

Moved by Emil Olsen and Seconded by Gordon Friars to accept the Secretary-
Treasurer’s Report as circulated. MOTION CARRIED.

The Audited Financial Statements will be presented by Teed Saunders Doyle at our
March 25, 2015 Meeting. The Auditors usually meet with the Finance Committee prior
to presenting the Audited Statement to the Board and Cherie was requested to arrange
this. Mr. Clark requested that the Secretary Treasurer contact the Auditors to see if a
March 18, 2015 presentation date would be possible.

Mr. McGuire asked if the Committee members have been rearranged. The Chair
advised that this has not been completed as of yet.

CHIEF’S REPORT

The Chief advised that there is a possibility of one or maybe two secondments as it
relates to the Integrated Child Exploitation Unit. Two applications have been received
by our members and the interviews are conducted by the RCMP. The second
secondments is for N-West which is a firearms related investigation unit.

The Chief reviewed the Major Crime Report.

He further advised that he and Mrs. Stewart met with the Province and an audit is being
done as it relates to the sick leave of the members and civilian employees of the Force.

The Chief is looking to obtain some type of software to assist Mrs. Stewart as it relates
to sick leave maintenance. Mrs. Stewart presently does all calculations and entries
manually.
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Kennebecasis Regional Joint
Board of Police Commissioners
February 26, 2015
Page 5

REGULAR MEETING

Policy Review - The Chief explained that as part of the Policy Review one item is the
policy as it relates to Respectful Workplace Harassment. Cst. Daley and Cpl. Henderson
who have both taken the renewed training, have provided training to all members of
the Force. This policy does impact the Board and should be incorporated into the
Board’s Policy Document. The Chief suggested that if Board members were interested
Cpl. Henderson or Cst. Daley could provide this training to any interested Board
Members. Mr. Olsen suggested that this training should be added to one of our
meetings and done on an annual basis.

Moved by Bill McGuire and Seconded by Linda Sherbo to receive the Chief’s
Report as circulated. MOTION CARRIED.

COMMIflEE REPORTS

Mr. Clark suggested that each Committee be looked at as they are gone through.

Personnel - One member has tendered his resignation and we will be looking to hire to
replace him.

Insurance - This will be looked at when Mr. Bourque is present at the March meeting.

Finance - Audit will be presented at the March meeting.

Transportation - The Chief advised that we are always looking for opportunities to find
best practices in respect to vehicle procurement. Sgt. Scott was provided with a
document used by the City of Saint John and he would like the Transportation
Committee to review this to see if there is any benefit of us using this type of document
and piggy backing with the City as it relates to vehicle procurement.

Policy Committee - Mr. Friars advised that the Police Force has adopted a Respectful
Workplace Policy and because the Board has a separate policy document we should
adopt the same policy. He suggested that the document that was sent out
electronically to the members be reviewed and brought back to the next meeting
prepared to vote on a new policy in this regard. He further suggested that he has
spoken to Cpl. Henderson and she is prepared to give the presentation to the Board. If
there are any comments he suggested that these be brought forward to either himself
of Mr. Alexander. Mr. Olsen suggested that once the members have had a chance to
review this then at the next meeting this be adopted as a Board Policy and incorporated
in our document. This was discussed at length.
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Kennebecasis Regional Joint
Board of Police Commissioners
February 26, 2015
Page 6

REGULAR MEETING

The Chief suggested that members review this document and contact Gordon Friars
with respect to any issues.

Regional Service Commission — Mr. Olsen advised he had attended the last meeting.

Mr. Clark advised that there will have to be changes made to the Committees.

The Chief suggested that a number of the committees are a lot of work. He suggested
that the Negotiations Committee should be struck soon as the Collective Agreement is
expiring at the end of the year.

Mr. Clark advised that he will be contacting members to see where interests lie in
respect to the different committees.

CORRESPONDENCE

Mr. Clark advised that the Chief received a letter from the Lieutenant Governor thanking
the Board for the invitation to the Long Service Awards Ceremony which was held.

Moved by Emil Olsen and Seconded by Danny Dobson to receive and file.
MOTION CARRIED.

NEW BUSINESS

Mr. Clark explained that Mrs. LeBlanc has been on the Board for fifteen years and he
thanked her for all of her dedication and hard work. The Chief advised that in 1998 he
was Acting Chief and Mrs. LeBlanc was the Chair at that time. It expressed that on
behalf of himself and the Management Team it has been an absolute pleasure to work
with her on the Board.

Moved by Bill McGuire and Seconded by Gordon Friars to adjourn. MOTION
CARRIED.

CHAIRMAN SECRETARIY
/
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Page 1
KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at January 31, 2015

2015 2014

Financial assets

Cash - General $321,359.23 $159,860.30
Sick Pay! Retirement Investments 752,517.63 659,843.25
Accounts Receivable 83,413.47 80,278.98
Sales tax recoverable 46,054.24 47,048.41

$1,203,344.57 $947,030.94

----Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued 213,767.33 138,583.15
Vested sick leave/retirement accrual 745,003.10 689,706.35
Sick leave replacement 13,298.53 12,850.00
Accrued pension benefit liability 1,140,800.00 1,283,400.00
Debenture payable 1,450,000.00 1,552,000.00

3,562,868.96 3,676,539.50

NET ASSETS (DEBT) -2,359,524.39 -2,729,508.56

----Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (see page 2) 3,407,400.83 3,306,648.98
Accumulated amortization -1,161,977.85 -1,041,192.63

2,245,422.98 2,265,456.35

Unamortized Debenture costs 6,756.48 5,144.03
Prepaid expenses 95,775.16 99,445.97

2,347,954.62 2,370,046.35

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS -11,569.77 -359,462.21

Assets 3,551,299.19 3,317,077.29
Liabilities 3,551,299.19 3,317,077.29
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Page 2
KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
January 31, 2015

2015

—-TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS-— —

2014

Millennium Drive
Land

Building - Roof
Mechanical
Electrical
Other
Structure

Accumulated amortization
Net book value of Building

Paving
Accumulated amortization
Net book value of paving

Landscaping
Accumulated amortization
Net book value of landscaping

Furnishings
Accumulated amortization
Net book value of furnishings

Machinery & equipment
Accumulated amortization
Net book value of equipment

Information technology equipment
Accumulated amortization
Net book value of IT equipment

Vehicles - Not general patrol
Accumulated amortization

Net book value of not general patrol vehicles

Vehicles - General patrol
Accumulated amortization

Net book value of general patrol vehicles

Total Tangible Capital assets
Total Accumulated amortization

194,248

42,677
250,628
330,543
510,421

1,106,997
2,241,266
-558,382

1,682,884

52,600
-22,355
30,245

3,268
-2,778

490

177,330
-75,365
101,965

44,035
-43,027

1,008

125,438
-76,226
49,212

316,924
-194,349
122,575

151,540
-68,710
82,830

3,306,649
-1,041,192
2,265,457

Balance Balance
beginning of year Additions Disposals end of year

194,247.55 194,247.55

42,676.66 42,676.66
250,627.82 250,627.82
330,542.64 330,542.64
520,640.03 520,640.03

1,106,997.29 1,106,997.29
2,251,484.44 0.00 2,251,484.44
-624,238.90 -624,238.90

1,627,245.54 0.00 0.00 1,627,245.54

52,600.16 52,600.16
-24,985.07 -24,985.07
27,615.09 0.00 0.00 27,615.09

3,268.36 3,268.36
-3,104.95 -3,104.95

163.41 0.00 0.00 163.41

177,329.73 177,329.73
-84,231.63 -84,231.63
93,098.10 0.00 0.00 93,098.10

61,695.71 61,695.71
-44,918.24 -44,918.24
16,777.47 0.00 0.00 16,777.47

142,374.50 142,374.50
-91,524.63 -91,524.63
50,849.87 0.00 0.00 50,849.87

367,110.54 367,110.54
-219,673.41 -219,673.41
147,437.13 0.00 0.00 147,437.13

157,289.84 157,289.84
-69,301.02 -69,301.02
87,988.82 0.00 0.00 87,988.82

3,407,400.83 0.00 0.00 3,407,400.83
-1,161,977.85 0.00 0.00 -1,161,977.85
2,245,422.98 0.00 0.00 2,245,422.98
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS Page 3
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

ONE MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31, 2015

REVENUE:

Fees $360.00 -91%

Taxi & Traffic Bylaw 2,358.30 466%

Interest income 21%

Retirement interest & dividends 16%

Secondments

____________

-14%

____________________________________________

-16%

______________________________

EXPENDITURE:

CRIME CONTROL

Salaries -5%

Benefits -11%
Training -27%

Equipment -100%

Equip repairs & IT support -100%
Communications -11%
Office function -15%

Leasing 20%

Policing-general -19%

Insurance -2%

Uniforms 117%

Prevention/p.r. -52%

Investigations -31%

Detention 0%

Taxi & Traffic Bylaw -100%

AuxilIary -100%

Public Safety

_____________

0%

______________________________________________

-6%

_________________________________

Fuel -31%
Maint./repairs -63%
Insurance -13%
New vehicles -100%
Equipment

____________

-100%

________________________________

-64%

--ACTUAL--
I---- ONE MONTH I

504.14
1,840.21

15,548.61
$20,611.26

PRIORYR BUDGET

$1,790 $3,917 $47,000
1,850 417 5,000

378 417 5,000
1,691 1,583 19,000

17,519 18,138 217,661
23,228 24,472 293,661

$251,151 269,064 $3,228,772
53,982 56,825 681,898

840 3,167 38,000
1,667 20,000

404 333 4,000
2,827 3,750 45,000
1,126 1,417 17,000

600 729 8,750
1,208 2,333 28,001

891 935 11,221
9,440 3,000 36,000

137 750 9,000
1,632 2,417 29,000
2,110 2,155 25,860

42 500
125 1,500

2,333 2,333 28,000
328,681 351,042 4,212,502

11,165 9,583 115,000
2,119 7,083 85,000
1,853 1,946 23,353

9,500 114,000
1,792 21,500

15,137 29,904 358,853

$255,643.50
50,313.19
2,299.06

3,351.20
1,198.51

874.07
1,894.61

915.00
6,521.32

363.29
1,668.08
2,155.00

2,333.33
329,530.16

6,567.51
2,632.38
1,693.08

10,892.97

VEHICLES
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMI’AISSIONERS
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

ONE MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31, 2015

TELECOM FUND

Page 4

I ONE MONTH
--ACTUAL--

EXPENDITURE continued:

BUILDING
Maintenance
Cleaning
Electricity
Taxes
Insurance
Grounds
Interest on Debenture
Debenture Principal

ADMINISTRATION
Salaries
Benefits
Professional Fees
Travel/Training
Board Travel/Expenses
Insurance
Bank service fees
Labour Relations
Sick Pay/Retirement
Retirement mt & dividends
2nd prior year (surplus) deficit

CONTRIBUTED BY MEMBERS
SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

PRIOR YR BUDGET--------

3,533 2,917 35,000
1,857 1,958 23,500
4,274 3,917 47000
3,631 3,813 45,754

419 439 5,273
827 750 9,000

6,063 5,750 69,000
8,500 8,750 105,000

29,104 28,294 339,527

49,070 49,202 590,424
10,314 9,594 115,133
2,071 3,417 41,000
1,547 1,083 13,000

417 5,000
99 104 1,247

33%
-13%
19%
-4%
-1%
87%

-19%
7%
5%

3%
-6%

-43%
29%

-100%
-2%

-100%
-100%

16%

-9%
-9%

3,871.62
1,696.96
4,677.42
3,644.79

435.25
1,401.39
4,674.75
9,333.33

29,735.51

50,754.00
9,004.28
1,960.87
1,400.00

101.67
154.60

1,840.21
-10,251.25
54,964.38

404,511.76
445,185.50

$40,673.74

361 833
4,434
1583

-10,251
60,416

445,185
445,185

$0

1,691
-1,685
63,468

413,162
436,721

$23,559

10,000
53,207
19,000

-123,015
724,996

5,342,217
5,342,217

$0

City of SJ telecomm services 25,325.00 0% 24,583 25,325 303,900
Data Networking charges 741.74 706 763 9,150
Retirees health insurance 213.36 -248 125 1,500
2nd prior year (surplus) deficit -406.83 0% 139 -407 -4,882

25,873.27 25,180 25,806 309,668
CONTRIBUTED BY MEMBERS 25,805.50 25,488 25,806 309,668
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) ($67.77) $308 $0 $0

Total surplus (deficit) $40,605.97 $23,867
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS pg 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
January 31, 2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BANK balance 321,359 at January 31
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE balance 213,767
Debenture costs paid in June & December -13,748

Current Accounts Payable 200,019 Paid in February

Extra (Shortfall) in bank account 121,340

Prepaids include insurance, property taxes and Managed
Health Care’s deposit

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Crime Control:
* Benefits Health insurance 2015: $9,362 2014: $15,340

Retirees health insurance costs $2,169 (retirees paid less than the costs of health plan)
Last January 2014 the retirees paid $566 less than the actual costs

Administration:
* Benefits Health Insurance 2015: $1,683 2014: $2,980

Telecom:
* Retirees health insurance (Retirees paid less than the actual cost of their plan) $213

Last January it was the opposite - the retirees had paid $248 more than the actual cost of the plan
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at February 28, 2015

2015 2014

Financial assets

Cash - General $352,323.31 $279,608.80
Sick Pay! Retirement Investments 753,736.99 661,102.22
Accounts Receivable 75,164.39 89,303.97
Sales tax recoverable 49,571.69 50,976.07

$1,230,796.38 $1,080,991.06

----Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued 149,798.25 192,055.33
Vested sick leave/retirement accrual 746,222.46 690,965.32
Sick leave replacement 13,298.53 12,850.00
Accrued pension benefit liability 1,140,800.00 1,283,400.00
Debenture payable 1,450,000.00 1,552,000.00

3,500,119.24 3,731,270.65

NET ASSETS (DEBT) -2,269,322.86 -2,650,279.59

----Non-Financial Assets
Tangible capital assets (see page 2) 3,407,400.83 3,306,648.98
Accumulated amortization -1,161,977.85 -1,041,192.63

2,245,422.98 2,265,456.35

Unamortized Debenture costs 6,496.71 4,920.37
Prepaid expenses 63,660.37 81,198.14

2,315,580.06 2,351,574.86

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 46,257.20 -298,704.73

Assets 3,546,376.44 3,432,565.92
Liabilities 3,546,376.44 3,432,565.92
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Page 2
KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS

SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
February 28, 2015

2015 2iA

—-TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS— —

Balance Balance
beginning of year Additions Disposals end of year

Millennium Drive
Land 194,247.55 194,247.55 194,248

Building - Roof 42,676.66 42,676.66 42,677
Mechanical 250,627.82 250,627.82 250,628
Electrical 330,542.64 330,542.64 330,543
Other 520,640.03 520,640.03 510,421
Structure 1,106,997.29 1,106,997.29 1,106,997

2,251484.44 0.00 2,251,484.44 2,241,266
Accumulated amortization -624,238.90 -624,238.90 -558,382
Net book value of Building 1,627,245.54 0.00 0.00 1,627,245.54 1,682,884

Paving 52,600.16 52,600.16 52,600
Accumulated amortization -24,985.07 -24,985.07 -22,355
Netbookvalueof paving 27,615.09 0.00 0.00 27615.09 30,245

Landscaping 3,268.36 3,268.36 3,268
Accumulated amortization -3,104.95 -3,104.95 -2,778
Net book value of landscaping 163.41 0.00 0.00 163.41 490

Furnishings 177,329.73 177,329.73 177,330
Accumulated amortization -84,231.63 -84,231.63 -75,365
Net book value of furnishings 93,098.10 0.00 0.00 93,098.10 101,965

Machinery & equipment 61,695.71 61,695.71 44,035
Accumulated amortization -44,918.24 -44,918.24 -43,027
Net book value of equipment 16,777.47 0.00 0.00 16,777.47 1,008

Information technology equipment 142,374.50 142,374.50 125,438
Accumulated amortization -91,524.63 -91,524.63 -76,226
Net book value of IT equipment 50,849.87 0.00 0.00 50,849.87 49,212

Vehicles- NotgeneraIpatrol 367,110.54 367,110.54 316,924
Accumulated amortization -219,673.41 -219,673.41 -194,349

Net book value of not general patrol vehicles 147,437.13 0.00 0.00 147,437.13 122,575

Vehicles - Generalpatrol 157,289.84 157,289.84 151,540
Accumulated amortization -69,301.02 -69,301.02 -68,710

Net book value of general patrol vehicles 87,988.82 0.00 0.00 87,988.82 82,830

Total Tangible Capital assets 3,407,400.83 0.00 0.00 3,407,400.83 3,306,649
Total Accumulated amortization -1,161,977.85 0.00 0.00 -1,161,977.85 -1,041,192

2,245,422.98 0.00 0.00 2,245,422.98 2,265,457
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS Page 3
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2015

REVENUE:
Fees
Taxi & Traffic Bylaw
Interest income
Retirement interest & dividends
Secondments

______________ ___________________________________

EXPENDITURE:
CRIME CONTROL

Salaries -9%
Benefits -13%
Training -28%
Equipment -100%
Equip repairs & IT support -100%
Communications 18%
Office function -12%
Leasing 26%
Policing-general -15%
Insurance -2%
Uniforms 15%
Prevention/p.r. -42%
Investigations -27%
Detention 0%
Taxi & Traffic Bylaw 210%
AuxilIary 24%
Public Safety

_____________

0%

_________________________________________

-10%

_____________________

Fuel -30%
Maint./repairs -19%
Insurance -13%
New vehicles -100%
Equipment

_____________

-100%

________________________________

-53%

I TWO MONTHS I

-43%
286%

5%
-3%

-14%
-13%

--ACTUAL--

$4,490.00
3,214.00

878.46
3,059.57

31097.22
$42,739.25

$488,542.23
98,733.59
4,588.23

8,841.39
2,497.26
1,838.68
3,951.37
1,830.00
6,910.13

874.44
3,510.49
4,310.00

258.57
310.81

4,666.67
631,663.86

13,336.22
11,430.99
3,386.16

28,153.37

PRIORYR BUDGET

$5,347 $7,833 $47,000
2,225 833 5,000

762 833 5,000
2,950 3,167 19,000

35039 36,277 217,661
46,323 48,944 293,661

$472,888 538,129 $3,228,772
100,563 113,650 681,898

6,645 6,333 38,000
3,333 20,000

404 667 4,000
8,297 7,500 45,000
3,052 2,833 17,000
1,404 1,458 8,750
4,389 4,667 28,001
1,781 1,870 11,221

10,732 6,000 36,000
1,199 1,500 9,000
2,742 4,833 29,000
4,300 4,310 25,860

83 500
250 1,500

4,667 4,667 28,000
623,063 702,084 4,212,502

19,493 19,167 115,000
7,750 14,167 85,000
3,707 3,892 23,353

19,000 114,000
3,583 21,500

30,950 59,809 358,853

VEHICLES
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

TWO MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2015

Page 4

EXPENDITURE continued:

BUILD NG
Maintenance
Cleaning
Electricity
Taxes
Insurance
Grounds
Interest on Debenture
Debenture Principal

ADMINISTRATION
Salaries
Benefits
Professional Fees
Travel/Training
Board Travel/Expenses
Insurance
Bank service fees
Labour Relations
Sick Pay/Retirement
Retirement mt & dividends
2nd prior year (surplus) deficit

CONTRIBUTED BY MEMBERS
SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

5,055.91
3,796.80
9,443.22
7,289.58

870.50
2,802.79
9,349.50

18,666.66
57,274.96

95,825.12
18,399.17
4,071.68
5,468.04

58.17
203.34
321.07

3,059.57
-20,502.50
106,903.66
781,256.60
890,371.00

$109,114.40

I TWO
--ACTUAL--

MONTHS I
PRIOR YR BUDGET

-13% 4,333 5,833 35,000
-3% 3,549 3,917 23,500
21% 8,833 7,833 47,000
-4% 7,262 7,626 45,754
-1% 837 879 5,273
87% 2,213 1,500 9,000

-19% 12,127 11,500 69,000
7% 17,000 17,500 105,000
1% 56,154 56,588 339,527

-3% 97,064 98,404 590,424
-4% 19,469 19,189 115,133

-40% 4,306 6,833 41,000
152% 2,810 2,167 13,000
-93% 70 833 5,000

-2% 198 208 1,247

-100% 361
-100%

-3%

1,667
8,868
3,167

-20,503
120,833
890,370
890,370

$0

2,950
-3,371

123,857
787,701
873,442

$85,741

10,000
53,207
19,000

-123,015
724,996

5,342,217
5,342,217

$0

-12%
-12%

0%

0%

TELECOM FUND
City of SJ telecomm services 50,650.00 49,167 50,650 303,900
Data Networking charges 1,483.48 1,383 1,525 9,150
Retirees health insurance 314.56 -281 250 1,500
2nd prior year (surplus) deficit -813.66 277 -814 -4,882

51,634.38 50,546 51,611 309,668
CONTRIBUTED BY MEMBERS 51,611.00 50976 51,611 309,668
SURPLUS (DEFICIT) ($23.38) $430 $0 $0

Total surplus (deficit) $109,091.02 $86,171
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KENNEBECASIS REGIONAL JOINT BOARD OF POLICE COMMISSIONERS pg 5
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
February 28, 2015

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

BANK balance 352,323 at February 28
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE balance 149,798
Debenture costs paid in June & December -27,497

Current Accounts Payable 122,302 Paid in March

Extra (Shortfall) in bank account 230,022

Prepaids include insurance, property taxes and Managed
Health Cares deposit

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Crime Control:
* Salaries under budget due to a sergeant on LTD & one 1st class constable on maternity leave
* Benefits Health insurance 2015: $19,321 2014: $26,280

Retirees health insurance costs $2,480 (retirees paid less than the costs of health plan)
Last January 2014 the retirees paid $708 more than the actual costs

Administration:
* Benefits Health Insurance 2015: $3,757 2014: $4,761

Telecom:
* Retirees health insurance (Retirees paid less than the actual cost of their plan) $314

Last February it was the opposite - the retirees had paid $281 more than the actual cost of the plan

2015Apr13OpenWeb_082



2015Apr13OpenWeb_083



2015Apr13OpenWeb_084



2015Apr13OpenWeb_085



2015Apr13OpenWeb_086



2015Apr13OpenWeb_087



2015Apr13OpenWeb_088



2015Apr13OpenWeb_089



2015Apr13OpenWeb_090



2015Apr13OpenWeb_091



2015Apr13OpenWeb_092



2015Apr13OpenWeb_093



2015Apr13OpenWeb_094



2015Apr13OpenWeb_095



2015Apr13OpenWeb_096



2015Apr13OpenWeb_097



2015Apr13OpenWeb_098



2015Apr13OpenWeb_099



2015Apr13OpenWeb_100



2015Apr13OpenWeb_101



2015Apr13OpenWeb_102



2015Apr13OpenWeb_103



2015Apr13OpenWeb_104



2015Apr13OpenWeb_105



2015Apr13OpenWeb_106



2015Apr13OpenWeb_107



2015Apr13OpenWeb_108



2015Apr13OpenWeb_109



2015Apr13OpenWeb_110



2015Apr13OpenWeb_111



2015Apr13OpenWeb_112



2015Apr13OpenWeb_113



2015Apr13OpenWeb_114



2015Apr13OpenWeb_115



2015Apr13OpenWeb_116



2015Apr13OpenWeb_117



2015Apr13OpenWeb_118



2015Apr13OpenWeb_119



2015Apr13OpenWeb_120



2015Apr13OpenWeb_121



2015Apr13OpenWeb_122



2015Apr13OpenWeb_123



2015Apr13OpenWeb_124



2015Apr13OpenWeb_125



2015Apr13OpenWeb_126



2015Apr13OpenWeb_127



2015Apr13OpenWeb_128



2015Apr13OpenWeb_129



2015Apr13OpenWeb_130



2015Apr13OpenWeb_131



2015Apr13OpenWeb_132



2015Apr13OpenWeb_133



2015Apr13OpenWeb_134



2015Apr13OpenWeb_135



2015Apr13OpenWeb_136



2015Apr13OpenWeb_137



2015Apr13OpenWeb_138



 

                                                                                      
 

ROTHESAY 
PARKS & RECREATION COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, March 17th, 2015 

 
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Miriam Wells, Chair 
  Councillor Bill McGuire 
  Maureen Desmond 
  Brendan Kilfoil 
  Tracy Langley 

Chip Smith 
   
  Director of Recreation Charles Jensen 
  Recreation Coordinator Alex Holder 

Recording Secretary Bev Côté 
 
ABSENT: Susan Harley  
  Jon LeHeup 
  Pat Palmer, Vice Chair 

Jane MacEachern 
Facilities Coordinator Ryan Kincade 
Town Manager John Jarvie 
 
                                                                                                                                                        

The meeting was called to order at 6:35 p.m. by Counc. Wells. 

1.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

MOVED by Chip Smith and seconded by Counc. McGuire to approve the minutes of the 
February 17th, 2015 meeting.  
               CARRIED. 
 
2.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

MOVED by Tracy Langley and seconded by Brendan Kilfoil to approve the agenda as 
circulated. 
  

CARRIED. 
3. DELEGATIONS 

4. REPORTS   

5. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

5.1 Rothesay Common Update 

Director Jensen informed the committee that Bird Construction picked up the contracts 3 
weeks ago and expects that they will be back for signatures in a weeks’ time.  Site 
meeting will take place in April but is dependent on the weather.  A question was raised as 
to the plans for snow removal if we have another winter like this year.  Director Jensen 
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ROTHESAY 
Parks & Recreation 
Minutes -2-       March 17/15 
 
 
 
informed the committee that he has been in touch with Puddle Dock, a skating surface 
similar to the plans for the Common, which is located in Portsmouth, NH, as they have 
had a winter similar to ours.  A front end loader with a blower was used as well as snow 
was dumped over the edges and then cleaned with a Zamboni.  A brief discussion 
followed.  The initial schedule is a great starting point.  The Town will be in discussions 
with the surrounding schools and day cares to see what time slots they would be 
interested in and it was also mentioned to add a senior time slot.  Council is looking for a 
recommendation from the Parks & Recreation Committee if there is going to be hockey 
allowed.  Director Jensen informed the committee that Puddle Dock allows Pond Hockey 
and there are rules that must be followed.  The Common skating area will be monitored 
by staff on weekdays from 4pm to close and on the weekends from 10am – 10pm.  A brief 
discussion followed. 

Moved by Brendan Kilfoil and seconded by Counc. McGuire, the Parks and Recreation 
Committee recommend that pond hockey will be accommodated on a limited basis with 
the understanding the facility will be monitored by staff during hours of operation. 
 

CARRIED 

5.2 Wells Park Project 

Director Jensen informed the committee that the plan is still to go to tender in March and 
back to Council for the April meeting.  There will be more soil testing around the proposed 
Dog Park area.  Director Jensen explained the new elements to the new members 
including the possibility of a cross country ski trail.  Members of the local Ski Club will help 
with the mapping of the trails and the Town will also need to price out some grooming 
equipment.  A brief discussion followed. 

5.3 Multi-Purpose Facility 

Counc. McGuire noted that the Town is still waiting on the Provincial Budget which will 
take place on March 31.  A brief discussion followed. 

5.4  K-Park Right-Of-Way on Town Owned Land 

Deferred to the next Parks & Recreation meeting as DDS White is on vacation.  He will 
provide a visual of the area for discussion. 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

6.1 Summer Program Overview 

Director Jensen gave a brief overview of the upcoming summer season.  At present 
resumes are coming in for the following positions: 

Casual:  4 positions May – December, 3 are returning from last year 
Lifeguards:  7 positions, waiting to hear about those returning 
Playground Program (3 locations):  waiting to hear about those returning 
Parks:  10 positions available, waiting to hear about those returning 
 
The YMCA is back for their second summer operating the Day Camp Program out of the 
Bill McGuire Center.  Director Jensen explained that our numbers were down and the 
YMCA approached the Town to take it over.  The YMCA felt that they could get the 
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numbers as they have funding and a broader reach although last summer their numbers 
were not as high as expected.  A question was raised as to the difference between the 
Day Camp and the Playground Program; Day Camp runs from 7:30 – 5:30 where the 
Playground Program runs from 9 – noon and again from 1 – 4. 
 
7. DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 April 21st, 2015  

 
8. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETING 

MOVED by Counc. McGuire  that the meeting be adjourned.   
CARRIED. 

The meeting adjourned at 7:05 p.m. 
 

 
 
             
Chairperson     Recording Secretary 
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PUBLIC WORKS and INFRASTRUCTURE COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Wednesday, March 18th, 2015 
8:30 a.m. 

 
PRESENT: FRED NELSON 

RAHA MOSCA 
COUNC. MATT ALEXANDER 
SCOTT SMITH 
RYAN SCOVILLE 
COUNC. PETER LEWIS 
DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS – BRETT MCLEAN 
TOWN MANAGER – JOHN JARVIE 
RECORDING SECRETARY – WENDY DORAN 
 

Counc. Alexander called the Meeting to order at 8.35 a.m.   
 
1.  APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

MOVED by S. Smith and seconded by R. Scoville to approve the Agenda as 
circulated.  
 CARRIED. 
  
2.  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

MOVED by Counc. Lewis and seconded by S. Smith to approve the Minutes 
of February 18th, 2015 as circulated.  
 CARRIED. 
 
3.  DELEGATIONS: 
 N/A 
 
4.   REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS: 
 N/A 
 
5.  UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 

5.1 Five year Capital Plan - Sidewalks: 
 DO McLean reported the major change in the updated Sidewalk Plan was 
Scribner/Parkdale area.  Comex is considering a bus stop at Sierra Avenue/Hampton 
Road which makes the Scribner/Parkdale area more critical in that it would allow 
residents from the Chapel Hill area downwards easier access to the Hampton Road.  
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The other areas that were briefly discussed were Kennebecasis Park, Wells, Campbell 
Drive/Grove Avenue and Dobbin Street.  There was also a brief discussion on 
maintenance costs. 
 MOVED by F. Nelson and S. Smith to recommend to Council to approve the 
Sidewalk Plan from 2015-2020 with looking at the 2020 plan to be broken into 2-3 
phases. 
           CARRIED.  
 
 5.2 Update on Grove Avenue/Hampton Road intersection: 
 DO McLean reported that a letter was sent to the homeowner with respect to the 
removal/trimming of the hedge.  DO McLean stated that the plan in the spring is to 
remove the curb drops and trim things back first to see if this will alleviate the problem.  
There was a discussion on replacing the poles at the intersection similar to the ones 
around the Common (heritage style) and reconfiguring the signals such that the turning 
lane was also protected by a pedestrian signal and so that all the signals (across 
Hampton and across the turning lane) activate at once. 
 
6.  NEW BUSINESS: 
 6.1 Replacement of backhoe and bush mower to be advertised for tender: 
 DO McLean stated this is more for information for the Committee.  It’s in the 
Capital Plan for 2015.  DO McLean reported that the old backhoe will be sold; it’s 13 
years old.   
 
 6.2 Addition of RA-5 crosswalk at Church Avenue/Gondola Point Road 
 DO McLean reported that a new crosswalk will be installed at this intersection; it 
will be Heritage Style poles to match those on the Common. 
 
 6.3 Traffic calming on Gondola Point Road 
 DO McLean reported that there have been several inquiries/concerns about the 
speed of traffic on Gondola Point Road at Isaac Street.  It’s at the top of a knoll with bad 
visibility for vehicles turning left out of Isaac onto Gondola Point Road.  There is a 
daycare right across the street which increases traffic volume as well.  There was a 
discussion about possible options.  DO McLean will put together a report and obtain 
from KVPF accident statistics for that area for the next meeting. 
 
7.   CORRESPONDENCE FOR ACTION: 

  7.1 E-mail from PNB with respect to request for a pedestrian crossing on 
Route 100 (Rothesay Road) at Riverside Golf Club to East Riverside-Kingshurst 
Park 
  DO McLean reported the Town’s initial request for this crosswalk was originally 
turned down.  It’s nice to see the Province has now approved it.  The preferred 
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location of the crosswalk would be at the bus stop where there are curb drops 
already installed.  The Province has requested a final review of sight distance prior 
to approving the final location of the crossing. 
 
 MOVED by Counc. Lewis and seconded by R. Scoville to recommend to Council 
that the Town move forward on the construction of the crosswalk at Golf Club 
Court/East Riverside-Kingshurst Park. 
             CARRIED. 
 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING: 
 April 22nd, 2015 at 8:30 a.m. 
 
9. ADJOURNMENT: 
 MOVED by S. Smith and seconded by F. Nelson to adjourn the meeting. 
 CARRIED. 
 Meeting adjourned at 9:10 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
Chairperson      Recording Secretary 
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : Mayor and Council 
FROM  : Recording Secretary Public Works & Infrastructure Committee 
DATE  : March 23, 2015 
RE  : Motions Passed at March 18, 2015 Meeting 
 
            
 
Please be advised the Public Works & Infrastructure Committee passed the following 
motions at its regular meeting on Wednesday, March 18, 2015: 
 
 MOVED by … and … to recommend to Council to approve the Sidewalk Plan 
from 2015-2020 with looking at the 2020 plan to be broken into 2-3 phases. 
          CARRIED.  
 

 MOVED by … and seconded by … to recommend to Council that the town move 
forward on the construction of the crosswalk at Golf Club Court/East Riverside-
Kingshurst Park. 
            CARRIED. 
             

 
 
 
 
        Wendy Doran  
        Recording Secretary 
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UTILITIES COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Wednesday, March 18, 2015 
 
PRESENT: COUNC. MATT ALEXANDER 
 PAUL BOUDREAU 
 DR. BRIAN CRAIG 
 STEPHEN WAYCOTT 

DIRECTOR OF OPERATIONS – BRETT MCLEAN 
TOWN MANAGER – JOHN JARVIE 
RECORDING SECRETARY – WENDY DORAN 
 

ABSENT: BLAINE JUSTASON 
 

 Counc. Alexander called the meeting to order at 6.55 p.m. 
 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
  MOVED by S. Waycott and seconded by P. Boudreau to approve the Agenda as 
circulated.  
 CARRIED. 
 
2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 MOVED by B. Craig and seconded by P. Boudreau to approve the Minutes of 
February 18, 2015 as circulated.  
 CARRIED. 
 
3.  DELEGATIONS: 
 N/A 
 
4. REPORTS & PRESENTATIONS: 
 N/A 
 
5. OLD BUSINESS: 

5.1 Update on on-going work at the Water Plant:   
 Earlier in the evening, members of the Committee attended a tour of the newly 
renovated water plant.   
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5.2 Update on water exploration: 
 DO McLean reported the latest well testing results are not as favorable as they 
had hoped.  They will continue to investigate the area off Rodney Street as it is believed 
that it’s on the same fault line as the existing wells at Carpenter Pond.  A brief 
discussion followed. 
 
6. NEW BUSINESS: 

   6.1 Discussion on Wells Park: 
 DO McLean provided the Committee with some background information, more 
specifically, that residents of Wells have expressed concerns over their area not being 
serviced with respect to water and sewer.  There was a brief discussion outlining the 
prohibitive cost of servicing the Wells community which is in the order of 25 million 
dollars.   
 
Back in the fall there was an announcement of a trail between Route 111 and the Wells 
Soccer field included in the Wells Park project.  DO McLean stated there may be an 
opportunity to put in a raw water line to bring water from the Rodney Street wellfield 
(under exploration) to the treatment plant at the same time the trail is developed.   
 
DO McLean expressed some concerns that this new trail through the watershed area 
may precipitate spur trails as suggested by the Parks and Recreation Committee and 
with that increased foot traffic, need for portable toilets, litter and the unsolicited use of 
ATV’s in the area, all which are cause for concern.  Town Manager Jarvie suggested a 
more comprehensive report/presentation would be beneficial.  The Committee agreed to 
keep this item on the agenda. 
 
 6.2 Discussion on Annual Reports 
 DO McLean stated that each year water and sanitation reports are compiled and 
sent to the Province as per their regulations.  The committee unanimously expressed an 
interest in receiving them.  A brief discussion followed. 
 

Meeting Addendum: 
 The Utilities Committee was reminded that the Public Hearing with respect to the 
Water By-Law is May 11th, 2015. 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE FOR ACTION: 

  N/A 

8. DATE OF NEXT MEETING: 
  April 23, 2015 at 5:30 p.m. 
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ROTHESAY 
Utilities Committee 
Minutes 18 March 2015 

  
-3 

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by P. Boudreau and seconded by B. Craig to adjourn the meeting. 

 
 CARRIED. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7.25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
Chairperson      Recording Secretary 
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ROTHESAY 
PLANNING ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

MEETING MINUTES 
Monday, March 30, 2015 

Common Room, Rothesay Town Hall 

PRESENT: Bill Kean, Chairperson  
   Laurie Gale, Vice Chairperson  
   Colin Boyne 
   Ewen Cameron 
   Tracy Langley 

Councillor Peter Lewis  
Craig Pinhey 
Councillor Miriam Wells 

 
   Town Manager John Jarvie 
   Director Planning/Development Services (DPDS) Brian White 

Administrator Mary Jane Banks 
 

Chair Bill Kean called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
1. AGENDA 
MOVED by Laurie Gale and seconded by Counc. Lewis the agenda be approved as 
circulated. 

CARRIED. 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
MOVED by Laurie Gale and seconded by Tracy Langley the minutes of 2 March 2015 be 
adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED. 
 
3. OLD BUSINESS 
n/a 
 
4. NEW BUSINESS 
4.1  2110 Rothesay Road Chris Ross 
  OWNER: Christopher and Stephanie Ross 
  PID: 30270482 
 PROPOSAL: Cash in lieu of  land for public purposes (subdivision)  
      
No representatives were in attendance.  DPDS White gave a brief summary, noting the 
applicant understood the application was an administrative matter.  DPDS White advised 
the proposed lot meets all requirements for a lot in the R1B zone.  The calculation for 
cash in lieu of land for public purposes is $13.50/m2. 
 
MOVED by Counc. Wells and seconded by Laurie Gale the Planning Advisory 
Committee recommend to COuncil to accept $1485.00 as cash in lieu of land for public 
purposes for the proposed vacant lot 15-01 to be subdivided from 2110 Rothesay Road, 
PID #30270482. 

CARRIED. 
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ROTHESAY 
Planning Advisory Committee 
Meeting minutes -2- 30 March 2015 

5. NEXT MEETING  
The next Committee meeting will be held on Monday, May 4, 2015.   
 
6.  ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by Laurie Gale and seconded by Counc. Wells the meeting be adjourned. 

CARRIED. 
The meeting adjourned at 5:35 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
                
Chairperson      Recording Secretary 
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : Mayor and Council 
FROM  : Planning Advisory Committee Recording Secretary 
DATE  : 31 March 2015 
RE  : 2110 Rothesay Road (cash in lieu of land for public purposes) 
             
 
Please be advised the Planning Advisory Committee passed the following motion 
at its meeting on Monday, March 30, 2015: 
 

MOVED … and seconded … the Planning Advisory Committee recommend 
to Council to accept $1485.00 as cash in lieu of land for public purposes for 
the proposed vacant lot 15-01 to be subdivided from 2110 Rothesay Road, 
PID #30270482. 

CARRIED. 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Council accept $1485.00 as cash in lieu of land for public purposes for the 
proposed vacant lot 15-01 to be subdivided from 2110 Rothesay Road, PID 
#30270482. 
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Planning Advisory Committee 
March 30th, 2015 

 
 
To:  Chair and Members of Rothesay Planning Advisory Committee 
 
From:  Brian L. White, MCIP, RPP 

Director of Planning and Development Services 
 
Date:  Wednesday, March 25, 2015 
 
Subject: 1 Lot Subdivision – 2110 Rothesay Road (PID 30270482) 
 

Applicant: Chris Ross Property Owner: Christopher Ross &  
Stephanie Ross 

Mailing Address: 2110 Rothesay Road 
Rothesay, NB 
E2H 2k3 

Mailing Address: 2110 Rothesay Road 
Rothesay, NB 
E2H 2k3 

Property Location: 2110 Rothesay Road PID: 30270482 
Plan Designation: Low Density Zone: Single Family Residential – 

Standard Zone [R1B] 
Application For: Cash in Lieu of Land for Public Purposes 
Input from Other 
Sources: 

 

Origin: 

An application for a 1 lot subdivision at 2110 Rothesay Road (PID 30270482) made by Mr. Chris Ross, on February 27th, 
2015.  The subdivision request is before PAC as a matter of administrative procedure for the purpose of complying with 
Section 42(3)(g)1 of the Community Planning Act that requires Council to determine and accept cash in lieu of LPP. 

Background: 
The subject property 2110 Rothesay Road is a 5,847.76 m2 (1.44 acre) lot zoned Single Family Residential – Standard 
Zone [R1B]. The proposal to subdivide the property would create Lot 15-01 being a new vacant corner lot with access to 
both Hazen Avenue and First Street. (See Map 1) 
 

 
Figure 1 - Subject Property 2110 Rothesay Road 

Staff reviewed the Tentative Plan Drawing (see Attachment A) submitted by Mr. Chris Ross and can confirm that LOT 
15-01 would meet the requirements of a residential lot in the R1B zone. 
                                                           
1 Section 42(3) (g) provide that in the discretion of the council or rural community council there is to be paid to the municipality or rural community, as 
the case may be, in lieu of setting aside land under a provision pursuant to paragraph (f), such sums as may be indicated in the by-law not exceeding 
eight per cent of the market value of land in the subdivision at the time of submission for approval of the subdivision plan, exclusive of land indicated as 
streets intended to be publicly-owned; 

2015Apr13OpenWeb_154

http://www.rothesay.ca/index.html


 2 

 

 
Figure 2 - Proposed Subdivision of LOT 15-01 

Analysis: 
Staff reviewed the lot minimum lot dimensions for the proposed lot against the R1B zone requirements and found that the 
new lot meets or exceeds all the requirements as follows: 
 

R1B Zone  
Required Lot Dimensions 

LOT 15-01 
New Vacant Lot 

Minimum Lot Area:  1350 m2 Proposed Lot Area 1350 m2 

Minimum Lot Frontage:  30 m Frontage (Hazen Avenue) 31.0 m 

Minimum Lot Depth:  45 m Side yard lengths (First Street) 
53.6 m 

 
The proposed lot meets the size requirements and will have access to existing public streets, storm water drainage, and 
sewer lines for these reasons Staff have no objection to the proposed subdivision. 

Land for Public Purposes 
Section 42 (3) g of the Community Planning Act gives Council the discretionary authority to determine what amount of 
money if any could be accepted as Cash in Lieu of Land for Public Purposes. In lieu of land set aside under Section 5.12, 
Council would ordinarily require that a sum of money be paid to the municipality in the amount of 8% of the market value 
of the proposed new LOT 15-01. When the subdivision plan is submitted for approval Staff calculate the market value of 
the new Lot using $13.50 per square meter as stated in Schedule C of the By-law 4-10.  
 
If the applicant disagrees with the Town’s calculation of the land’s market value of $18,225.00 for LOT 15-01 then they 
have the option of retaining, at their cost, a certified, independent appraiser to determine the true market value of the land.  
 
Staff have determined, in agreement with the by-law that a cash-in-lieu payment is required as follows: 
 

                                                           
2 Rothesay Subdivision By-law No. 4-10: Section 5.1 Land For Public Purposes - Amount of Land to be Provided to the Town 
As a condition of approval of a subdivision plan, land in the amount of ten percent (10%) of the area of the subdivision, exclusive of the 
public streets, at such a location as assented to by Council pursuant to the Act, is to be set aside as “Land for Public Purposes” and so 
indicated on the plan. 
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Value of Land 
per square meter 

Total Area 
of Proposed Lot 15-01 

Estimated Value 
of New Lots 

($13.50 x 1350m2) 

LPP Cash in Lieu 
8% of Estimated Value 

($18,225.00 x 8%) 
$13.50 / m2 1350 m2 $18,225.00 $1,458.00 

 
The required cash in lieu of Land for Public Purposes is $1,458.00 for the proposed vacant LOT 15-01.  

Polling 

The proposed subdivision requires no variance, no new public street, complies with all By-law requirements and is 
therefore not subject to PAC consideration.  The subdivision request is before PAC as a matter of administrative 
procedure only and for the purpose of assisting Council in compliance with Section 42 (3) g of the Community Planning 
Act that requires Council to determine and accept cash in lieu of LPP. 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended THAT the Planning Advisory Committee: 

A. Recommend that Council accept $1,458.00 as cash in lieu of LPP for the proposed vacant LOT 15-01 to be 
subdivided from 2110 Rothesay Road (PID 30270482). 

Attachments: 
Map 1   Subject Property Site Location Map 
Attachment A  Tentative Plan of Subdivision LOT 15-01 - 2110 Rothesay Road 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report Prepared by: Brian L. White, MCIP, RPP 
Date: Wednesday, March 25, 2015 
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MAP 1 - 2110 Rothesay Road

GIS Services, Town of Rothesay

Civic Address

Property (Single-Family)

Encumbrance

D-SluiceBox

D-Manhole

D-CatchBasin

D-Main

March 12, 2015
0 0.015 0.030.0075 mi

0 0.025 0.050.0125 km

1:1,000

This product is for informational purposes only and has not been 
      prepared for, nor is suitable for legal,  engineering, or surveying purposes.

Author Name
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March 2015 Building Permit Report 
Date Property Location

Value of 
Construction Building Permit 

Fee
Permit 
Number

Nature of 
Construction

2015-0052015/03/09 10 Ryan Dr. $1,200.00 $20.00Electrical Upgrade

2015-0062015/03/19 12 Summer Haven $300,000.00 $2,175.00Single Family

2015-0072015/03/31 4 Summer Haven $350,000.00 $2,532.00Single Family

Monthly Total March. 2015 **

Steven Nason,CBCO

Building Inspector

Summary for  2015 to Date** $981,200.00

$4,727.00$651,200.00

$7,119.25

Monthly Total March 2014 $483,000.00

$1,422,000.00

Value of 
Construction Building 

Permit Fee

**Excludes Water / Sewage Fees

Summary for  2014 to Date **

$3,520.25

$10,888.75

Page 1 of 1
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : Mayor and Council 
FROM  : Doug MacDonald 
DATE  : April 10, 2015 
RE  : Audited Financial Statements 
             
 
The draft audited consolidated financial statements for the year-ended December 
31, 2014 are enclosed for your consideration. 
 
Staff and auditor comments are included via presentation to Council. 
 
I recommend Council adopt the following motions: 
 
MOVED by                and seconded by                     resolved that 
Council approves Rothesay’s 2014 audited financial statements and authorizes 
the Mayor and Treasurer to sign the financial statements. 
 
MOVED by              and seconded by     resolved that 
Council authorize the Mayor and Treasurer to sign the audit communication letter 
from Teed Saunders Doyle & Co. 
 
MOVED by            and seconded             resolved that 
Council appoints Teed Saunders Doyle & Co to complete the audit of Rothesay’s 
2015 financial statements at a fee to be negotiated. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To His Worship The Mayor and Members of Council
Rothesay, New Brunswick

We have audited the consolidated statement of financial position of Rothesay as at December 31, 2014,
and the consolidated statements of operations, changes in net debt and cash flows for the year then ended
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards.  Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control.  An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

1.
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Independent Auditors' Report to His Worhip The Mayor and Members of Council of Rothesay (cont'd)

Opinion

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Rothesay as at December 31, 2014, and the results of its operations and changes in
net debt for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANTS

Saint John, NB
XXX

2.
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2014 2013

Budget Actual Actual

(Note 27)

REVENUE (Note 2)
Property tax warrant $ 14,246,284 $ 14,246,281 $ 14,073,003
Unconditional grant 209,567 209,568 315,881
Conditional government transfers (Note 28) 55,592 1,336,347 642,597
Services other governments 66,306 80,903 79,174
Sale of services (Note 28) 311,200 333,716 509,651
Other own source (Note 28) 123,040 208,655 530,325
Water and sewer user fees 2,363,044 2,412,895 2,271,412
Sundry income 202,697 307,730 315,502

17,577,730 19,136,095 18,737,545

EXPENDITURE (Notes 2 and 28)
General government services 2,047,959 1,598,344 1,703,586
Protective services 4,278,630 4,254,824 4,178,935
Transportation services 4,673,940 5,859,229 4,819,857
Environmental health services 715,000 710,520 686,719
Environmental development services 547,200 426,342 414,983
Recreation and cultural services 2,249,273 2,215,255 2,331,416
Water and sewer services 2,421,564 2,432,314 2,147,986

16,933,566 17,496,828 16,283,482

ANNUAL SURPLUS FOR THE YEAR $ 644,164 1,639,267 2,454,063

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS -

BEGINNING OF YEAR 62,292,543 60,027,495

CHANGE IN PERCENTAGE OWNERSHIP

OF CONTROLLED ENTITIES 1,413 (189,015)

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS - 

END OF YEAR $ 63,933,223 $ 62,292,543

3.
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 2, 3 and 4) $ 7,650,318 $ 5,774,844
Accounts receivable (Notes 2, 3 and 5) 1,437,352 2,076,757
Investments (Notes 3 and 10) 305,921 248,790

$ 9,393,591 $ 8,100,391

LIABILITIES 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Notes 2, 3 and 9) $ 2,172,721 $ 1,898,206
Deferred revenue (Note 8) 2,961,974 2,991,800
Long term debt (Notes 2, 3 and 11) 13,897,239 11,159,997
Accrued pension obligation (Notes 2 and 17) 1,300,753 1,489,939
Accrued sick leave (Notes 2 and 16) 287,523 283,197
Accrued retirement allowance (Notes 2 and 17) 756,995 728,423

21,377,205 18,551,562

NET DEBT (11,983,614) (10,451,171)

NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Tangible capital assets (Notes 2 and 21) 116,624,404 111,282,962
Accumulated amortization (Notes 2 and 21) (40,771,966) (38,587,967)

75,852,438 72,694,995

Inventory (Note 2) 23,881 22,476
Prepaid expenses 37,640 24,039
Unamortized debenture costs 2,878 2,204

75,916,837 72,743,714

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $ 63,933,223 $ 62,292,543

CONTINGENT LIABILITY (Note 18)

APPROVED BY:

  Mayor

  Town Treasurer

4.
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN NET DEBT

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013

Annual surplus $ 1,639,267 $ 2,454,063

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (8,259,823) (3,865,761)
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 585,965 20,387
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,488,481 3,321,163
Change in percentage ownership of tangible capital assets (1,749) 270,489
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,029,683 67,801

(1,518,176) 2,268,142

Acquisition of inventories (23,881) (22,476)
Acquisition of prepaid assets (37,640) (24,039)
Acquisition of unamortized debenture costs (2,878) (2,204)
Consumption of inventories 22,476 27,027
Use of prepaid assets 24,039 30,481
Consumption of unamortized debenture costs 2,204 3,444

(1,533,856) 2,280,375

Change in percentage ownership 1,413 (189,015)

Decrease (increase) in net debt (1,532,443) 2,091,360

Net debt - beginning of year (10,451,171) (12,542,531)

Net debt - end of year $(11,983,614) $(10,451,171)

APPROVED BY:

  Mayor

  Town Treasurer

5.
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ROTHESAY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

2014 2013

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND 

CASH EQUIVALENTS

OPERATING TRANSACTIONS

Annual surplus $ 1,639,267 $ 2,454,063
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets 1,029,683 67,801
Amortization of tangible capital assets 3,488,481 3,321,163
Accounts receivable 639,405 (844,102)
Accounts payable and accrual liabilities 274,515 (969,260)
Deferred revenue (29,826) 432,921
Accrued sick leave 4,326 2,532
Change in accrued pension obligation (189,186) (42,473)
Change in accrued retirement allowance 28,572 31,859
Change in inventory/prepaid expenses/unamortized debenture costs (15,680) 12,233

6,869,557 4,466,737
CAPITAL TRANSACTIONS

Acquisition of tangible capital assets (8,259,823) (3,865,761)
Change in percentage ownership of capital assets (1,749) 270,489
Proceeds on disposal of tangible capital assets 585,965 20,387

(7,675,607) (3,574,885)
FINANCING TRANSACTION

Long term debt 2,737,242 (1,221,312)

INVESTING TRANSACTION

(Increase) decrease in investments (57,131) (50,493)
Purchase of guaranteed investment certificate - -
Sale of guaranteed investment certificate - 1,006,245

(57,131) 955,752

CHANGE IN PERCENTAGE OWNERSHIP 1,413 (189,015)

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,875,474 437,277

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - BEGINNING OF YEAR 5,774,844 5,337,567

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 7,650,318 $ 5,774,844

6.
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

1. PURPOSE OF THE ORGANIZATION

Rothesay ("the Town") was incorporated as a town by the Province of New Brunswick
Municipalities Act on January 1, 1998 and was approved for status as a Municipality effective
January 1, 1998 by an amendment of New Brunswick Regulation 85-6 under the Municipalities Act.
As a municipality, Rothesay is exempt from income tax under section 149(1)(c) of the Canadian
Income Tax Act.  

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town are the representations of management prepared in accordance
with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles for local government, as recommended by
the Public Sector Accounting Board (PSAB) of the Chartered Professional Accountants of Canada.

The focus of Public Sector Accounting Standard ('PSAS') financial statements is on the financial
position of the Town and the changes thereto.  The consolidated statement of financial position
includes all of the assets and liabilities of the Town and its jointly controlled entities.

Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by the Town are as follows:

Reporting Entity

The consolidated financial statements reflect the assets, liabilities, revenues, expenditures and
changes in net debt and cash flows of the reporting entity.  The reporting entity is comprised of all
organizations and enterprises accountable for the administration of their affairs and resources to the
Town and which are owned or jointly controlled by the Town.

The entities included in the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

- Rothesay
- Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of Police Commissioners (KRJPC)
- Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. (KVFD)
- Kennebecasis Public Library

Interdepartmental and organizational transactions and balances are eliminated.

The jointly controlled entities have been proportionately consolidated at the following rates:

2014 2013

Kennebecasis Regional Joint Board of 
Police Commissioners 41.02% 41.07%

Kennebecasis Valley Fire Department Inc. 41.65% 41.57%
Kennebecasis Public Library 40.05% 40.05%

Changes in ownership percentages have been accounted for as an adjustment to accumulated surplus
(deficit).

7.
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Budget

The budget figures contained in these consolidated financial statements were approved by Council
on December 19, 2013 and the Director of Community Finances on March 3, 2014.

Financial Instruments

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued.  In subsequent periods,
equity instruments with actively traded markets are reported at fair value, with any unrealized gains
losses reported in income.  All other financial instruments are reported at amortized costs, and tested
for impairment at each reporting date.  Transactions costs on the acquisition, sale or issue of
financial instruments are expensed when incurred.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and balances with banks and short term deposits
with original maturities of three months or less.

Revenue Recognition

Unrestricted revenue is recorded on an accrual basis and is recognized when collection is reasonably
assured.  Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the year in which the related
expenses are incurred.

Other revenue is recorded when it is earned.

Expenditure Recognition

Expenditures are recorded on an accrual basis.

Measurement Uncertainty

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with Canadian public sector
accounting standards requires management to make estimates that affect the reported amount of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period.  These
estimates are reviewed periodically, and as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
earnings in the period in which they become known.  Actual results may differ from those estimates.

Examples of significant estimates include:
- the allowance for doubtful accounts;
- providing for amortization of tangible capital assets;
- the estimated useful lives of tangible capital assets;
- the recoverability of tangible capital assets; and
- post employment benefits liability.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value with cost being determined on the
first in, first out basis.

8.
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Capital Reserves

The use of the Capital Reserve Funds is restricted to capital acquisitions.  The intention is to use
these funds for future capital acquisitions and reduce future borrowing requirements. 

Operating Reserves

The use of these funds is restricted to payment of operating expenses. 

Tangible Capital Assets

Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all amounts that are directly attributable
to acquisition, construction, development or betterment of the asset.  The cost of the tangible capital
asset, less any residual value when applicable, is amortized on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives as follows:

Asset Type Estimated Useful Life

Land improvements 10-75 years
Buildings 20-40 years
Vehicles 3-25 years
Machinery and equipment 3-20 years
Roads and streets 5-75 years
Storm sewer 25-60 years
Water and wastewater networks 30-60 years

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is available for productive use.

Segmented Information

The Town is a diversified municipal unit that provides a wide range of services to its residents.  For
management reporting purposes, the Town's operations and activities are organized and reported by
function.  This presentation was created for the purpose of recording specific activities to attain
certain objectives in accordance with special regulations, restrictions or limitations.  Municipal
services are provided by departments as follows:

General Government Services
This department is responsible for the overall governance and financial administration of the
Town.  This includes council functions, general and financial management, legal matters and
compliance with legislation, as well as civic relations.

Protective Services
This department is responsible for the provision of policing services, fire protection, emergency
measures, animal control and other protective measures.

Transportation Services
This department is responsible for common services, roads and streets maintenance, street
lighting, traffic services, parking and other transportation related functions.

Environmental Health Services
This department is responsible for the provision of waste collection and disposal.

9.
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Segmented Information (cont'd)

Environmental Development Services
This department is responsible for planning and zoning, community development, tourism and
other municipal development and promotion services.

Recreation and Cultural Services
This department is responsible for the maintenance and operation of recreational and cultural
facilities including the swimming pool, arena, parks and playgrounds and other recreational and
cultural facilities.

Water and Sewer Services
This department is responsible for the provision of water and sewer services including the
maintenance and operation of the underground networks, treatment plants, reservoirs and
lagoons.

The Town has documented a schedule of segmented disclosure in Note 23.

Post Employment Benefits

The Town recognizes its obligations under post employment benefit plans and the related costs, net
of plan assets.  The Town has a sick leave benefit as documented in Note 16 and a pension plan and
retirement allowance as documented in Note 17.

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Town is exposed to various risks through its financial instruments and has a comprehensive risk
management framework to monitor, evaluate and manage these risks.  The following analysis
provides information about the Town's risk exposure and concentration as of December 31, 2014:

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from the potential that a counter party will fail to perform its obligations.  The
Town is exposed to credit risk from its accounts receivable.  The Town minimizes credit risk
through ongoing credit management.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities.  The Town is exposed to this risk mainly in respect of its receipt of funds
from its customers and other related sources, long term debt, accounts payable and accrued
liabilities and other obligations.

Currency Risk

Currency risk is the risk to the company's earnings that arise from fluctuations of foreign exchange
rates and the degree of volatility of these rates.  The Town is not exposed to foreign currency risk as
it does not hold foreign currencies.
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

3. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cont'd)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument might be adversely affected by a
change in the interest rates.  In seeking to minimize the risks from interest rate fluctuations, the
Town manages exposure through its normal operating and financing activities.  The Town is not
exposed to interest rate risk as its long term debt does not have a variable interest rate.

4. CASH

2014 2013

Unrestricted $ 2,514,768 $ 719,980
Restricted - reserve funds 5,003,813 4,875,731
Restricted - controlled entities 131,737 179,133

$ 7,650,318 $ 5,774,844

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2014 2013

Due from the Federal Government and its agencies (Note 6) $ 850,601 $ 1,391,107
Due from the Province of New Brunswick (Note 7) 10,037 9,552
Water and sewer 484,063 547,864
Arena 37,564 43,405
Other 55,087 84,829

$ 1,437,352 $ 2,076,757

6. DUE FROM FEDERAL GOVERNMENT AND ITS AGENCIES

2014 2013

Canada Revenue Agency (HST refund) $ 450,147 $ 387,790
Canada-New Brunswick Gas Tax 400,454 904,356
Atlantic Canada Opportunities Agency - 98,961

$ 850,601 $ 1,391,107

7. DUE FROM PROVINCE OF NEW BRUNSWICK

2014 2013

Department of Transportation $ 10,037 $ 9,552
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

8. DEFERRED REVENUE

2014 2013

Government transfers - Gas Tax $ 2,939,285 $ 2,968,378
Deferred revenue - K-Park Levy (Note 15) 22,689 23,422

$ 2,961,974 $ 2,991,800

9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLES AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES

2014 2013

Accounts payable - trade $ 1,710,918 $ 1,301,407
Bid deposits 21,721 59,497
Accrued interest 61,674 48,540
Accrued liabilities 215,614 241,866
Accounts payable - other 162,794 246,896

$ 2,172,721 $ 1,898,206

10. INVESTMENTS

The investments represent the Town's proportionate share of the investments of the KRJPC.  The
investments consist of short term notes, Canadian equities and foreign equities and are recorded at
fair market value.  The unrealized gain (loss) on the investments at December 31, 2014 was $13,507
(2013 - $3,741).  The investments are restricted for future payment of retirement benefits.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

11. LONG TERM DEBT

(a) General Capital Fund

Balance Issued Redeemed Balance

January 1, during during December 31,

2014 year year 2014

New Brunswick Municipal Financing Corporation

Debentures:
AQ10 2.75% - 5.50%,

due 2014, OIC # 03-52, 99-22 $ 88,000 $ - $ 88,000 $ -
AR24 2.75% - 4.80%,

due 2014, OIC # 3-88 617,000 - 617,000 -
AV31 4.15% - 4.30%,

due 2014, OIC # 04-40 58,000 - 58,000 -
BD24 1.05% - 2.50%,

due 2015, OIC # 99-22 168,000 - 83,000 85,000
BF22 1.35% - 2.2%,

due 2016, OIC # 00-18 214,000 - 70,000 144,000
BA17 0.95% - 5.00%,

due 2019, OIC # 08-03, 08-63 629,000 - 95,000 534,000
BB26 1.00% - 4.50%,

due 2019, OIC # 08-63, 08-82 842,000 - 128,000 714,000
BG18 1.65% - 3.80%,

due 2027, OIC # 10-12, 
11-71, 99-77 1,106,000 - 110,000 996,000

BL26 1.2% - 3.7%,
due 2034, OIC # 03-88,
11-71, 13-08 - 3,453,000 - 3,453,000

$ 3,722,000 $ 3,453,000 $ 1,249,000 $ 5,926,000

Principal payments required during the next five years for the General Capital Fund are as follows:

2015 - $669,000; 2016 - $601,000; 2017 - $542,000;  2018 - $559,000; 2019 - $576,000
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

11. LONG TERM DEBT (cont'd)

Balance Issued Redeemed Balance

January 1, during during December 31,

2014 year year 2014

(b) Water and Sewer Capital Fund

New Brunswick Municipal Financing Corporation

Debentures:
AQ11 2.75% - 5.5%,

due 2014, OIC # 03-92 $ 53,000 $ - $ 53,000 $ -
AY18 3.30% - 4.85%,

due 2018, OIC # 96-60, 96-72 252,000 - 12,000 240,000
AZ29 2.10 - 4.95%,

due 2018, OIC # 03-0092 617,000 - 113,000 504,000
BF23 1.35% - 3.45%,

due 2021, OIC # 00-18 1,582,000 - 72,000 1,510,000
BG19 1.65 - 3.80%,

due 2027, OIC # 11-0045 489,000 - 11,000 478,000
BH23 1.35 - 3.80%, 

due 2032, OIC # 00-0018 685,000 - 28,000 657,000
BL27 1.2% - 3.7%,

due 2034, OIC # 11-0045 - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000

3,678,000 1,000,000 289,000 4,389,000

Canada Mortgage and Housing Corporation

CMHC 3.70%, due 2030
OIC # 09-119, 09-139, 10-012 3,122,653 - 135,204 2,987,449

$ 6,800,653 $ 1,000,000 $ 424,204 $ 7,376,449

Approval of the Municipal Capital Borrowing Board has been obtained for the long term debt.

The Water and Sewer Capital Fund contains long term debt of $661,568 (2013 - $682,517) issued to
fund local improvement projects.  The debt will be repaid over a period of time through the
collection of  local improvement levies.

Principal payments required during the next five years for the Water and Sewer Capital Fund are as
follows:  

2015 - $406,205; 2016 - $419,393; 2017 - $434,773; 2018 - $635,352; 2019 - $310,137

In 2018, debenture AY18 will mature with a final amount due of $200,000, however it is expected
that $185,000 of this payment will be refinanced during that year for an additional ten years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

11. LONG TERM DEBT (cont'd)

(c) Jointly Controlled Entity - KRJBPC (proportionate share)

Balance Issued Redeemed Balance

January 1, during during December 31,

2014 year year 2014

New Brunswick Municipal Financing Corporation

Debentures:

AR52 2.75% - 4.8%,
due 2014, OIC # 02-66, 03-53 $ 218,060 $ - $ 218,060 $ -

AT63 3.75% - 4.375%,
due 2015, OIC # 03-53 419,284 - 26,723 392,561

BL 45-2014 1.2% - 3.1%,
due 2014, OIC# 02-66, 03-53 - 202,229 - 202,229

$ 637,344 $ 202,229 $ 244,783 $ 594,790

Principal payments required during the next three years are as follows:

2015 - $411,020; 2016 - $18,869; 2017 - $19,279; 2018 - $19,690; 2019 - $20,100

In 2015, debenture AT63 will mature with a final amount due of $392,561, however, $365,078 of
this payment is expected to be refinanced during that year.

Total Long term debt:

2014 2013

General Capital Fund $ 5,926,000 $ 3,722,000
Water and Sewer Capital Fund 7,376,449 6,800,653
Controlled Entity - RRJBPC 594,790 637,344

$ 13,897,239 $ 11,159,997

12. LAND FOR PUBLIC PURPOSES 

In accordance with the Community Planning Act, the Town has the authority to set aside up to 10%
of any land subdivided, or up to 8% of the monetary value of such land, as a reserve.  As well, any
proceeds on the sale of public lands must be reserved.  These funds can only be used for the
purchase or development of public lands and are included in the Reserve Funds (Note 25).

13. SEWER OUTFALL RESERVE

In accordance with an agreement with the Municipality of Quispamsis, Rothesay and the
Municipality of Quispamsis are required to fund, on an annual basis, an amount to cover the
operating and maintenance costs associated with the shared sewer effluent line and outfall pipe.  The
contributions are made on a per unit basis, with Rothesay contributing $1 per unit and the
Municipality of Quispamsis contributing $2 per unit.  Any accumulated amounts are transferred to
the Water and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund for future capital expenditures.  At December 31, 2014,
the balance in this reserve was $228,026 (2013 - $212,611).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

14. TOWN HALL RESERVE 

Under a former lease agreement between the Town and the Province of New Brunswick, a Town
Hall Reserve was established.  The accumulated funds are intended to cover long-term maintenance
and capital costs associated with the Town Hall building.  These funds are included in the General
Capital Reserve Fund.  At December 31, 2014, the balance in this reserve was $40,897 (2013 -
$30,449).

15. DEFERRED REVENUE

In 2002, the Town issued a special warrant of assessment to the residents of Kennebecasis Park for
local improvements made to the area.  The assessment will be invoiced annually over a period of 30
years.  A number of residents paid the entire levy amount in the first year, and as a result, the
prepayment has been recorded as deferred revenue to be amortized over 29 years.

16. ACCRUED SICK LEAVE

Rothesay provides sick leave that accumulates at a rate of 18 hours per month.  All employees can
accumulate to a maximum of 2,400 hours and can take leave with pay for an amount of time equal to
the accumulated sick leave.  

KVFD provides sick leave that accumulates at a rate of 18 hours per month while the employees
sick bank is below 1,000 hours, and at 13.5 hours per month while the sick bank is above 1,000
hours.  All employees can accumulate to a maximum of 2,184 sick leave hours and can take leave
with pay for an amount of time equal to the accumulated sick leave.

An actuarial valuation in accordance with PSA 3255,  was performed for each plan, the 44 employee
plan for Rothesay and the 36 employee plan for KVFD.  The actuarial method used was the
Projected Unit Credit pro-rated on service to expected usage.  The valuation was based on a number
of assumptions about future events, such as interest rates, wage and salary increases and employee
turnover and retirement.  The assumptions used reflect the Town's and KVFD's best estimates.

The following summarizes the major assumptions in the valuation:

- annual salary increase is 3%;
- the discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligations is 3.17%;
- retirement age is 60; and
- estimated net excess utilization of rate of sick leave varies with age.

The sick leave is an unfunded benefit and as such, there are no applicable assets.  Benefits are paid
out of general revenue as they come due.

The consolidated unfunded liability consist of:

Estimated
2014 2013

Rothesay $ 9,000 $ 23,200
KRJPC 5,455 5,277
KVFD 273,068 254,720

$ 287,523 $ 283,197
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

17. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE

Retirement Allowance Program

Rothesay's retiring employees are entitled to four weeks' regular salary for every five years of
employment to a maximum of 26 weeks.  The employee must be 55 years of age to receive the
benefit.

The accrued liability is based on an actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2014, which used a
discount rate of 3.17% and an annual salary increase rate of 3%.  The liability was determined using
the projected unit credit method pro-rated on service to the date the maximum benefit is earned.

KVFD's retiring employees are entitled to four weeks' regular salary for every five years of
employment to a maximum of 24 weeks based on a minimum of ten years service.  The employee
must be of retirement age of 55.

The accrued liability is based on an actuarial valuation as at December 31, 2013, which used a
discount rate of 4.1% and an annual salary increase rate of 3%.

KRJBPC's retiring employees are entitled to accumulate the greater of fifty percent of unused sick
leave credits or one month's standard salary for every five years, or any part thereof, of service to a
maximum of 6 months.

The accrued liability is based on an actuarial valuation as at July 31, 2013, which used a discount
rate of 6% and an annual salary increase rate of 3%.

The consolidated unfunded liability consist of:

2014 2013

Rothesay $ 306,000 $ 274,531
KVFD 146,150 171,352
KRJBPC 304,845 282,540

Balance at end of year $ 756,995 $ 728,423

Pension Obligation

Employees of Rothesay, KVFD and KRJBPC participate in the New Brunswick Municipal
Employees Pension Plan (NBMEPP).  The NBMEPP is a multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by a board elected by the members under the provisions of the Municipalities Act
of New Brunswick.  The NBMEPP provides pensions based on length of service and best average
earnings.

Actuarial valuations for funding purposes are performed either annually or triennially depending on
the financial position of the NBMEPP (currently annually).  In turn, the actuarial valuations for
accounting purposes are based on these figures (with adjustments).  The most recent actuarial
valuation was prepared as at December 31, 2012 and resulted in an overall NBMEPP accrued
benefit obligation of $85,323,300 based on the accounting basis.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

17. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont'd)

The actuarial valuation for accounting purposes was based on a number of assumptions about future
events, such as inflation rates, interest rates, wage and salary increases and employee turnover and
mortality.  The assumptions used reflect management's best estimates.  The following summarizes
the major assumptions in the valuation as at December 31, 2013:

- the expected inflation rate is 2.35% (prior 2.35%);
- the discount rate used to determine the accrued benefit obligation is 5.6% (prior 5.5%);
- the expected rate of return on assets is 5.6% (prior 5.5%);
- retirement age varies by age and employment category; and
- estimated average remaining service life (EARSL) is 14.0 years (prior 15.1 years).

The actuarial valuation prepared as at December 31, 2012 indicated that the present value of the
accumulated plan benefits exceeded the market value of the net assets available for these benefits.
The pension plan has been granted a solvency deficiency exemption by the Province of New
Brunswick.  On a going concern valuation basis, the actuarial valuation indicated a plan deficit of
$11,581,900, an decrease of $1,047,700 from the December 31, 2011 deficit of $12,629,600.  Based
on the assumptions as at December 31, 2012, the actuary expected the level of employer and
employee contributions to be sufficient to fund the deficit in less than fifteen years, as allowed by
the Pensions Benefits Act.

As at December 31, 2012, the NBMEPP provides benefits for 171 retirees.  Total benefits payments
to retirees and terminating employees during 2014 are estimated to be approximately $2,745,900
(actual 2013, $2,278,900) in totality for the NBMEPP.

Employees make contributions using rates that vary by earnings level and employment category,
with an overall average contribution rate of approximately 7.6%.  Each municipality contributes an
amount that equals their employees contributions amounts.  Pension fund assets are invested in short
term securities, bonds, Canadian equities and foreign equities.  Combined employees and
municipalities contributions for 2014 are estimated to be approximately $5,456,800 (actual 2013,
$5,306,000) in totality for the NBMEPP.

The following summarizes the NBMEPP data as it relates to Rothesay:

- The average age of the 42 active employees covered by the NBMEPP is 46.4 (as at Dec 31,
2012);
- benefit payments were $109,300 in 2013 and were estimated to be $115,200 in 2014; and
- combined contributions were $365,600 in 2013 and were estimated to be $376,600 in 2014.

The following summarizes the NBMEPP data as it relates to KVFD:

- The average age of the 40 active employees covered by the NBMEPP is 45.9 (2013 - 45.1);
- benefit payments were $253,100 in 2013 and were estimated to be $258,500 in 2014; and
- combined contributions were $442,800 in 2013 and were estimated to be $456,000 in 2014.

The following summarizes the NBMEPP data as it relates to KRJBPC:

- The average age of the 42 active employees covered by the NBMEPP is 41.2;
- benefit payments were $283,900 in 2013 and were estimated to be $290,400 in 2014; and
- combined contributions were $563,800 in 2013 and were estimated to be $580,000 in 2014.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

17. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont'd)

In addition to determining the position of the NBMEPP as it relates to Rothesay and the other
controlled entities as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2013, NBMEPP's actuary performed
an extrapolation of the December 31, 2013 accounting valuation to determine the estimated position
as at December 31, 2014.  The extrapolation assumes assumptions used as at December 31, 2014
remain unchanged from December 31, 2013.  The extrapolation also assumes assets return 5.6%, net
of all fees and expenses.  If experience is different than assumed, amounts will be adjusted to reflect
actual experience.  Results of the extrapolation are as follows:

Estimated

Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Accrued Benefit Liability

Accrued benefit liability at beginning of period $ 1,489,939 $ 1,532,412
Change in ownership percentage 380 (44,647)
Adjustment to actual (38,170) 18,271
Pension expense for the year 250,936 355,929
Employer contributions (402,384) (372,026)

Accrued benefit liability at end of period $ 1,300,701 $ 1,489,939

In summary, the consolidated accrued benefit liability is estimated to be $1,300,701 as at December
31, 2014.  The December 31, 2013 liability was estimated in the prior year.  The actual liability was
calculated to be $1,459,725.  The difference of $38,170 has been recorded in the current year.  This
amount is included in the post employment benefits payable on the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Estimated

Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Rothesay $ 345,200 $ 431,800
KVFD 487,597 531,098
KRJBPC 467,956 527,041

$ 1,300,753 $ 1,489,939

The financial position as it relates to the accrued benefit liability is shown as follows and illustrates
the unamortized amounts being recognized in pension expense over time:

Estimated

Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Funded Status at End of Period

Accrued benefit obligation $ 12,300,259 $ 11,387,729
Plan assets (11,154,816) (10,110,901)

Plan deficit 1,145,443 1,276,828

Adjustment to 2013 actual - 38,170
Unamortized experience losses 155,310 174,941

Accrued benefit liability at end of period $ 1,300,753 $ 1,489,939
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DECEMBER 31, 2014

17. POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PAYABLE (cont'd)

The following illustrates the reconciliation of accrued benefit obligation from the beginning of
period to the end of period:

Estimated

Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Accrued Benefit Obligation

Accrued benefit obligation at beginning of period $ 11,387,729 $ 10,715,761
Change in ownership percentage 2,052 (305,129)
Current service cost 598,995 589,495
Benefits payments (341,987) (331,111)
Interest for period 653,470 580,163
Experience loss during period - 138,550

Accrued benefit obligation at end of period $ 12,300,259 $ 11,387,729

The following illustrates the reconciliation of plan assets from the beginning of period to the end of
period:

Estimated

Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Reconciliation of Plan Assets

Plan assets at beginning of period $ 10,110,901 $ 8,658,426
Change in ownership percentage 1,849 (240,118)
Employer contributions 402,384 390,612
Employee contributions 402,384 390,612
Benefit payments (341,987) (331,111)
Return on plan assets during period 579,285 1,126,080
Experience gain during the year - 116,400

Plan assets at end of period $ 11,154,816 $ 10,110,901

Total expense related to pensions include the following components:

Estimated Actual

Jan 1, 2014 to Jan 1, 2013 to

Dec 31, 2014 Dec 31, 2013

Pension Expense

Employer current service cost $ 196,611 $ 198,882
Interest on accrued benefit obligation 645,515 580,563
Expected return on assets (579,286) (475,406)
Amortization of unrecognized balances

Prior service savings 6,100 13,900
Experience loss (18,004) (8,023)

Pension expense $ 250,936 $ 309,916

The pension expense is included in the statement of operations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

18. CONTINGENT LIABILITY

In the normal course of operations, the Town becomes involved in various claims and legal
proceedings.  While the final outcome with respect to claims and legal proceedings pending at
December 31, 2014 cannot be predicted with certainty, it is the opinion of management and council
that resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect.

19. SHORT TERM BORROWING

Operating Borrowing

As prescribed in the Municipalities Act, borrowing to finance General Operating Fund operations is
limited to 4% of the Municipality's budget.  Borrowing to finance Water and Sewer Fund operations
is limited to 50% of the operating budget for the year.  In 2014, the Town has complied with these
restrictions.

Capital Funds

At December 31, 2014, there were no short-term funds (2013 - $1,044,007) borrowed from other
funds and no short-term funds (2013 - nil) borrowed from a financial institution to provide interim
funding for capital projects in the General Capital Fund.

At December 31, 2014, there were short-term funds totaling $67,077 (2013 - $10,136) borrowed
from other funds and no short-term funds (2013 - nil) borrowed from a financial institution to
provide interim funding for capital projects in the Water and Sewer Capital Fund.

Interim Borrowing Capital Funds

 The Town has remaining outstanding authority for short-term borrowings as follows:

General Capital Fund, OIC # 10-012 $ 2,980,000
General Capital Fund, OIC # 13-008 2,700,000

$ 5,680,000

Inter-fund Borrowing

The Municipal Financing Reporting Manual requires that short term inter-fund borrowings be repaid
in the next year unless the borrowing is for a capital project.  The amounts payable between Funds
are in compliance with the requirements.

Amounts outstanding at year end are inter fund regular payables or in some cases, a short term loan
may exist from the reserve account.  Where a loan is in place, interest is paid to the reserve account
at a rate that equates what the account would have earned had it been in the bank.  These loan
amounts are paid off within the following year and council is given a summary at year end to be
fully informed of these transactions.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

20. WATER AND SEWER FUND SURPLUS

The Municipalities Act requires Water and Sewer Fund surplus amounts to be absorbed into one or
more of four Operating Budgets commencing with the second next ensuing year; the balance of the
surplus at the end of the year consists of:

2014 2013

2014 Deficit $ (163,645) $ -
2013 Deficit (73,776) (73,776)
2012 Surplus - (138,840)

$ (237,421) $ (212,616)
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DECEMBER 31, 2014

21. SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Buildings and Machinery                                     Infrastructure                                      Assets
Land Leasehold and Roads and Storm Under 2014 2013

Land ImprovementsImprovements Vehicles Equipment Streets Sewer Water Sewer Subtotal Construction Total Total

COST

Balance - beginning
 of year $ 3,011,428 $ 5,259,362 $ 8,492,905 $ 2,770,145 $ 2,018,422 $ 32,046,235 $ 16,263,806 $ 23,311,179 $ 15,370,131 $ 108,543,613 $ 2,739,349 $ 111,282,962 $ 108,284,835

Change in percentage
ownership (41) (26) 863 1,945 43 - - - - 2,784 - 2,784 (335,014)

Add: Net additions
during the year 627,523 644,842 171,729 417,360 152,114 4,946,517 692,068 1,128,583 533,618 9,314,354 (1,054,531) 8,259,823 6,182,369

Less: Disposals during
the year - (32,888) (701,603) (92,927) - (1,985,283) (82,045) (42,887) 16,468 (2,921,165) - (2,921,165) (2,849,228)

Balance - end of year 3,638,910 5,871,290 7,963,894 3,096,523 2,170,579 35,007,469 16,873,829 24,396,875 15,920,217 114,939,586 1,684,818 116,624,404 111,282,962

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION

Balance - beginning
of year - 1,580,017 2,876,922 1,328,713 629,190 15,193,652 5,298,529 4,823,593 6,857,351 38,587,967 - 38,587,967 35,775,761

Change in percentage
ownership - (12) 485 585 (23) - - - - 1,035 - 1,035 (64,524)

Add: Amortization
during the year - 324,403 189,687 212,232 171,376 1,570,824 298,811 430,406 290,742 3,488,481 - 3,488,481 3,321,162

Less: Accumulated 
amortization
on disposals - (20,650) (112,990) (83,329) - (974,101) (63,766) (9,633) (41,048) (1,305,517) - (1,305,517) (444,432)

Balance - end of year - 1,883,758 2,954,104 1,458,201 800,543 15,790,375 5,533,574 5,244,366 7,107,045 40,771,966 - 40,771,966 38,587,967

NET BOOK VALUE OF

TANGIBLE CAPITAL

ASSETS $ 3,638,910 $ 3,987,532 $ 5,009,790 $ 1,638,322 $ 1,370,036 $ 19,217,094 $ 11,340,255 $ 19,152,509 $ 8,813,172 $ 74,167,620 $ 1,684,818 $ 75,852,438 $ 72,694,995

Consists of:
General Fund 

Assets $ 3,220,478 $ 3,885,818 $ 1,712,465 $ 832,309 $ 1,077,974 $ 19,217,094 $ 11,340,255 $ - $ - $ 41,286,393 $ 754,082 $ 42,040,475 $ 40,330,052
Water & Sewer Fund

Assets 178,555 - 131,640 - 4,665 - - 19,152,509 8,813,172 28,280,541 930,736 29,211,277 27,632,521
Controlled 

Entities 239,877 101,714 3,165,685 806,013 287,397 - - - - 4,600,686 - 4,600,686 4,732,422

$ 3,638,910 $ 3,987,532 $ 5,009,790 $ 1,638,322 $ 1,370,036 $ 19,217,094 $ 11,340,255 $ 19,152,509 $ 8,813,172 $ 74,167,620 $ 1,684,818 $ 75,852,438 $ 72,694,995
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

22. SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS FOR JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Land Machinery and Assets Under 2014 2013

Land Improvements Buildings Vehicles Equipment Construction Total Total

COST

Balance - beginning of year $ 239,918 $ 123,297 $ 3,903,837 $ 1,315,106 $ 408,864 $ - $ 5,991,022 $ 6,072,630

Change in percentage ownership (41) (26) 863 1,945 43 - 2,784 (335,013)

Add: Net additions during the year - - 9,773 48,477 64,700 - 122,950 2,493,463

Less: Disposals during the year - - - (13,027) - - (13,027) (2,240,058)

Balance - end of year 239,877 123,271 3,914,473 1,352,501 473,607 - 6,103,729 5,991,022

ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION

Balance - beginning of year - 13,666 639,718 474,774 130,442 - 1,258,600 1,386,714

Change in percentage ownership - (12) 485 585 (23) - 1,035 (64,524)

Add: Amortization during the year - 7,903 108,585 82,515 55,791 - 254,794 207,021

Less: Accumulated amortization on disposals - - - (11,386) - - (11,386) (270,611)

Balance - end of year - 21,557 748,788 546,488 186,210 - 1,503,043 1,258,600

NET BOOK VALUE OF TANGIBLE

CAPITAL ASSETS $ 239,877 $ 101,714 $ 3,165,685 $ 806,013 $ 287,397 $ - $ 4,600,686 $ 4,732,422

24.
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

23. SCHEDULE OF SEGMENT DISCLOSURE

Environmental Environmental Recreation Water and 2014 2013

General Protective Transportation Health Development and Culture Sewer Consolidated Consolidated

REVENUE

Property tax warrant $ 1,524,353 $ 4,017,451 $ 5,541,803 $ 669,575 $ 398,896 $ 2,094,203 $ - $ 14,246,281 $ 14,073,003
Sale of service 41,789 - - - - 291,927 - 333,716 509,651
Services provided to other

governments - - 80,903 - - - - 80,903 79,174
Other own source 50,447 54,128 - - 104,080 - - 208,655 530,325
Unconditional grant 22,424 59,098 81,522 9,850 5,868 30,806 - 209,568 315,881
Conditional  government

transfers - - 865,104 - - 141,243 330,000 1,336,347 642,597
Water and sewer user fees - - - - - - 2,412,895 2,412,895 2,271,412
Sundry and interest 87,925 172,290 - - - - 47,515 307,730 315,502

1,726,938 4,302,967 6,569,332 679,425 508,844 2,558,179 2,790,410 19,136,095 18,737,545

EXPENDITURE

Salaries and benefits 765,744 3,491,408 1,081,375 - 253,118 637,466 582,738 6,811,849 6,890,322
Goods and services 751,884 573,327 1,558,020 710,520 173,224 1,073,792 848,816 5,689,583 5,614,637
Interest 11,117 24,954 86,592 - - 55,740 256,463 434,866 412,583
Other 35,239 738 1,027,318 - - - 8,754 1,072,049 44,777
Amortization 34,360 164,397 2,105,924 - - 448,257 735,543 3,488,481 3,321,163

1,598,344 4,254,824 5,859,229 710,520 426,342 2,215,255 2,432,314 17,496,828 16,283,482

Surplus (deficit)
 for the year $ 128,594 $ 48,143 $ 710,103 $ (31,095) $ 82,502 $ 342,924 $ 358,096 $ 1,639,267 $ 2,454,063
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

24. RECONCILIATION OF ANNUAL SURPLUS

Water and Water and Water and

General General Sewer Water and General General Sewer Sewer Jointly

Operating Capital Operating Sewer Operating Capital Operating Capital Controlled

Fund Fund Fund Capital Fund Reserve Fund Reserve Fund Reserve FundReserve Fund Entities Total

2014 annual surplus (deficit) $ 7,781,700 $ (1,638,864) $ 399,398 $ 375,835 $ (141,460) $ (949,593) $ 145 $ (52,654) $ (4,135,240) $ 1,639,267

Adjustments to annual surplus
(deficit) for funding requirements

Second previous year's surplus 152,103 - (138,839) - - - - - 10,810 24,074
Transfers between funds

Transfer elimination (2,752,524) 2,752,524 - - - - - - - -
Long term debt principal 

repayment (676,000) 676,000 (424,204) 424,204 - - - - - -
Provision for Pension liability (86,600) - - - - - - - (62,123) (148,723)
Provision for sick leave accrual - - - - - - - - 18,042 18,042
Provision for retirement 

allowance - - - - - - - - (44,524) (44,524)
Accumulated amortization

on disposal of capital assets - (1,294,131) - - - - - - (11,386) (1,305,517)
Cost of tangible capital assets 
Cost of tangible capital assets 
Revenue adjustment (4,133,487) - - - - - - - 4,133,487 -
Deferred Gas tax revenue - - - - - (434,356) - - - (434,356)
Unlrealized gains on investments - - - - - - - - (9,919) (9,919)
Amortization expense - 2,498,143 - 735,544 - - - - 254,794 3,488,481

Total adjustments to 2014 annual 
surplus (deficit) (7,496,508) 4,632,536 (563,043) 1,159,748 - (434,356) - - 4,289,181 1,587,558

2014 annual surplus (deficit) for
funding requirements $ 285,192 $ 2,993,672 $ (163,645) $ 1,535,583 $ (141,460) $ (1,383,949) $ 145 $ (52,654) $ 153,941 $ 3,226,825
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

25. STATEMENT OF RESERVES

Water Water

General General and Sewer and Sewer Land for

Operating Capital Operating Capital Public 2014 2013

Reserve Reserve Reserve Reserve Purpose Total Total

ASSETS

Cash and short term investments $ 616,177 $ 2,839,843 $ - $ 1,547,793 $ - $ 5,003,813 $ 4,875,731
Accounts receivable from other funds 1,731 310,172 97,586 (97,586) 88,030 399,933 2,105,933

$ 617,908 $ 3,150,015 $ 97,586 $ 1,450,207 $ 88,030 $ 5,403,746 $ 6,981,664

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS $ 617,908 $ 3,150,015 $ 97,586 $ 1,450,207 $ 88,030 $ 5,403,746 $ 6,981,664

REVENUE

Other government transfers $ - $ 800,908 $ - $ - $ - $ 800,908 $ 983,448
Transfers from Operating Funds - 20,000 - 112,878 3,460 136,338 1,406,525
Interest 8,540 44,736 145 14,468 1,193 69,082 54,445

8,540 865,644 145 127,346 4,653 1,006,328 2,444,418
EXPENDITURES

Transfers to General Operating Fund 150,000 - - - - 150,000 -
Transfer to General Capital Fund - 2,000,000 - - 24,246 2,024,246 701,368
Transfers to General and Water and

Sewer Capital Funds - 230,000 - 180,000 - 410,000 270,000

150,000 2,230,000 - 180,000 24,246 2,584,246 971,368

ANNUAL SURPLUS $ (141,460) $ (1,364,356) $ 145 $ (52,654) $ (19,593) $ (1,577,918) $ 1,473,050

Principal Interest Date of

Name of Investment Amount Rate Maturity

Cashable GIC $ 3,093,613 1.35% March 23, 2015
Cashable GIC 400,454 1.15% January 14, 2016
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

25. STATEMENT OF RESERVES (cont'd)

Council Resolutions regarding transfers to and from reserves:

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Deputy Mayor Grant resolved that $1,400,000 be
transferred from the General Capital Reserve Fund to the General Capitla Fund to cover the costs of
capital projects. CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. Lewis resolved that $600,000 be transferred
from the General Capital Reserve Fund (Gas Tax) to the General Capital Fund to cover costs of
capital works projects. CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Deputy Mayor Grant resolved that $150,000 be
transferred from the General Operating Reserve Fund to the General Operating Fund to cover costs
for extra snow removal. CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. Alexander resolved that $10,000 be
transferred from the General Operating Fund to the capital reserve fund (Town Hall) for the year
2014. CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Deputy Mayor Grant resolved that the sum of
$10,000 be transferred from the General Operating Fund to the General Capital Reserve Fund
representing outside contributions (KVCC).CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. McGuire resolved that Gas Tax funding in
the amount of $800,908 for the year 2014, be transferred to the General Capital Reserve Fund (Gas
Tax). CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. Alexander resolved that the sum of
$3,460.32 be transferred from the General Operating Fund to the Land for Public Purposes Reserve
Fund for external contributions. CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. McGuire resolved that the sum of
$24,246.37 be transferred from the Land for Public Purposes Fund to the General Capital Fund to
cover costs of land purchase. CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. Gallagher Jette resolved that the $98,850 be
transferred from Utility Operating Fund to the Utility Capital Reserve Fund for water and sewer
connection fees. CARRIED.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. Gallagher Jette resolved that $230,000 be
transferred from the General Capital Reserve Fund (Gas Tax) to the Utility Capital Fund to cover
projects costs.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. McGuire resolved that $180,000 be
transferred from the Utility Capital Reserve Fund to the Utility Capital Fund to cover project costs.

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. Lewis resolved that $4,000 be transferred
from the Utility Operating Fund to the Utility Capital Reserve Fund for Rothesay's contribution to
the sewage outfall reserve.

28.
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ROTHESAY

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

25. STATEMENT OF RESERVES (cont'd)

Moved by Counc. MacDonald and seconded by Counc. Alexander resolved that $10,028 received
from Quispamsis for sewage outfall be transferred to the Utility Capital Reserve Fund.

I hereby certify that the above are true and exact copies of resolutions adopted at a special meeting
of Council on December 15, 2014.

  
Clerk, Date
Rothesay

29.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

26. STATEMENT OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES OPERATIONS

 2014 2013

KV Fire Police Library Total Total

ASSETS $ 1,668,238 $ 1,511,467 $ 2,316,582 $ 5,496,287 $ 5,516,873

LIABILITIES $ 1,003,428 $ 1,528,499 $ 26,663 $ 2,558,590 $ 2,669,698

ACCUMULATED

SURPLUS

(DEFICIT) $ 664,810 $ (17,032) $ 2,289,919 $ 2,937,697 $ 2,847,175

REVENUE $ 1,852,451 $ 2,414,238 $ 98,364 $ 4,365,053 $ 4,652,680

EXPENDITURES 1,831,713 2,274,664 169,567 4,275,944 4,296,453

20,738 139,574 (71,203) 89,109 356,227

CHANGE IN PERCENTAGE

OWNERSHIP 1,237 176 - 1,413 (189,015)

ANNUAL SURPLUS

(DEFICIT) $ 21,975 $ 139,750 $ (71,203) $ 90,522 $ 167,212

The above noted entities are included in the consolidated financial statements.  The above figures do
not include the eliminating adjustments and represent Rothesay's proportionate share.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

27. OPERATING BUDGET TO PSA BUDGET

Operating Operating

Budget Budget Amortization Controlled

General Water and Sewer TCA Entities Transfers Total

REVENUE

Property tax warrant $ 14,246,284 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ 14,246,284
Unconditional transfers from other governments 209,567 - - - - 209,567
Conditional transfers from Federal or Provincial governments 26,500 - - - 29,092 55,592
Services other governments 66,306 - - - - 66,306
Other own source 123,040 - - - - 123,040
Sale of services 311,200 - - - - 311,200

Other transfers 775,000 - - - (775,000) -

Water and sewer user fees - 2,750,044 - - (387,000) 2,363,044
Sundry income 5,000 34,000 - 163,697 - 202,697
Surplus of second previous year 152,103 (138,840) - - (13,263) -

15,915,000 2,645,204 - 163,697 (1,146,171) 17,577,730

EXPENDITURES

General government services 2,020,500 - 34,000 - (6,541) 2,047,959
Protective services 4,465,800 - 134,103 4,088,514 (4,409,787) 4,278,630
Transportation services 3,244,100 - 2,100,000 - (670,160) 4,673,940
Environmental health services 715,000 - - - - 715,000
Environmental development services 547,200 - - - - 547,200
Recreation and cultural services 1,745,400 - 450,397 77,989 (24,513) 2,249,273
Fiscal services

Long term debt repayments 676,000 424,204 - - (1,100,204) -
Interest 216,000 256,824 - - (472,824) -
Transfer from General Operating Fund to

General Capital Reserve Fund 310,000 - - - (310,000) -
Transfer from General Operating Fund to

General Capital Fund 1,975,000 - - - (1,975,000) -
Transfer from Water and Sewer Operating Fund to Water

and Sewer Capital Reserve Fund - 380,000 - - (380,000) -
Transfer from Water and Sewer Operating Fund to Water

and Sewer Operating Reserve Fund - 154,436 - - (154,436) -
Water and Sewer - 1,429,740 735,000 - 256,824 2,421,564

15,915,000 2,645,204 3,453,500 4,166,503 (9,246,641) 16,933,566

Surplus (deficit) $ - $ - $ (3,453,500) $ (4,002,806) $ 8,100,470 $ 644,164
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

28. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURES SUPPORT

2014 2014 2013

Budget Actual Actual

REVENUE

Sale of services
Community Centre $ 18,000 $ 28,598 $ 19,526
Rental revenue 11,700 25,339 179,908
Recreational programs 281,500 279,779 310,217

$ 311,200 $ 333,716 $ 509,651

Other own source
Permits and fines $ 113,000 $ 158,248 $ 181,317
Contributions by developers - - 305,921
Miscellaneous 10,040 50,407 43,087

$ 123,040 $ 208,655 $ 530,325

Conditional government transfers
ACOA Grant $ - $ 83,213 $ 116,436
Province of New Brunswick - 365,103 -
Gas Tax revenue 29,092 830,000 470,000
Other government grants 26,500 58,031 56,161

$ 55,592 $ 1,336,347 $ 642,597

EXPENDITURE

General government services
Legislative

Mayor $ 35,600 $ 31,701 $ 34,662
Councilors 104,000 96,902 95,736
Fundy Regional Service Commission 10,500 9,095 7,413
Other 17,000 6,368 16,908

167,100 144,066 154,719
Administrative

Administration 905,300 619,245 708,404
Office building 206,500 163,198 52,014
Solicitor 50,000 20,562 21,985
Supplies - 30,363 39,969
Other 177,017 108,398 129,463

1,338,817 941,766 951,835
Financial management

External audit and PSAS conversion 31,000 38,547 43,223
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

28. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT (cont'd)

2014 2014 2013

Budget Actual Actual

General government services (cont'd)
Other

Civic relations 4,750 3,125 2,772
Rothesay elementary playground - - 100,000
Community communications 9,000 5,085 5,041
Insurance 143,300 142,726 109,287
Property tax - land for public purposes 20,033 8,295 11,326
Grants to organizations 44,250 32,328 28,876
Cultural support 10,000 6,000 6,000
Cost of assessment 232,250 232,250 229,423
Interest 13,459 11,117 9,608
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - (1,321) 6,476
Amortization 34,000 34,360 45,000

511,042 473,965 553,809

$ 2,047,959 $ 1,598,344 $ 1,703,586

Protective services
Fire

Administration $ 214,092 $ 245,546 $ 225,779
Firefighting force 1,380,430 1,381,223 1,364,781
Telecommunications 7,747 6,088 4,372
Insurance 14,161 13,535 14,268
Prevention and training 14,411 12,967 13,010
Facilities 98,678 94,044 82,736
Fleet 46,065 39,550 50,071
Operations 18,909 21,617 22,822
Water costs 10,883 10,883 10,294
Retirement allowance 16,035 17,197 22,618
Other 625 2,237 521
Gain on disposal of tangible capital assets - - (4,874)
Amortization 73,170 103,465 95,379

1,895,206 1,948,352 1,901,777

Crimestoppers 2,800 2,800 2,800

Police
Crime Control 1,615,688 1,567,984 1,510,430
Vehicle Fleet 100,721 91,246 115,193
Property 66,902 101,449 100,073
Administration 328,439 296,655 299,478
Retirement allowance 29,945 26,991 30,831
Communications 124,783 125,668 120,618
Other - (9,919) (4,728)
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 738 1,644
Amortization 60,933 60,932 67,168

2,327,411 2,261,744 2,240,707
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

28. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT (cont'd)

2014 2014 2013

Budget Actual Actual

Protective services (cont'd)
Other

Animal control 12,000 11,736 7,200
Interest 30,213 24,954 21,568
Other 11,000 5,238 4,883

53,213 41,928 33,651

$ 4,278,630 $ 4,254,824 $ 4,178,935

Transportation services
Common

Wages and benefits $ 893,000 $ 1,081,375 $ 1,113,840
Workshop, yard and equipment maintenance 573,600 611,779 555,520
Engineering 40,000 6,234 5,920

1,506,600 1,699,388 1,675,280

Roads and Streets
Roadway surfaces 105,000 73,192 72,113
Crosswalks and sidewalks 24,000 13,186 28,963
Culverts and drainage ditches 40,000 15,388 35,333
Storm sewers 50,000 29,924 49,091
Street cleaning 26,000 6,954 23,554
Snow and ice removal 390,000 489,690 479,317
Street lighting 142,000 141,886 137,863
Street signs 15,000 5,777 13,080
Traffic lane marking 30,000 17,936 14,782
Traffic signals and signs 33,000 39,604 12,814
Railway crossing signals 26,000 20,970 12,888
Public transit - Comex Service 81,500 85,500 77,863
Interest 104,840 86,592 74,841
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets - 1,027,318 -
Amortization 2,100,000 2,105,924 2,112,075

3,167,340 4,159,841 3,144,577

$ 4,673,940 $ 5,859,229 $ 4,819,857

Environmental health services
Solid waste disposal $ 225,000 $ 222,235 $ 212,214
Solid waste compost 25,000 27,407 26,299
Solid waste collection 425,000 425,489 414,417
Clean up campaign 40,000 35,389 33,789

$ 715,000 $ 710,520 $ 686,719
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

28. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT (cont'd)

2014 2014 2013

Budget Actual Actual

Environmental development services
Environmental planning and zoning $ 457,500 $ 338,891 $ 326,068
Greater Saint John Economic Development

Agency, Inc. 86,500 84,348 85,812
Tourism 3,200 3,103 3,103

$ 547,200 $ 426,342 $ 414,983

Recreation and cultural services
Administration $ 237,500 $ 260,842 $ 341,562
Beaches 53,400 47,133 51,872
Rothesay Arena 262,500 199,552 259,560
Memorial Centre 57,500 53,115 53,080
Summer programs 167,300 202,124 197,242
Parks and gardens 494,700 471,746 501,886
Regional Facilities Commission 310,000 309,324 277,779
Kennebecasis Public Library Inc 77,989 96,224 62,480
Special events 32,500 28,515 31,528
Living museum 4,000 1,543 2,945
Apartment buildings 34,000 46,946 108,238
Loss on disposal of capital assets - (5,806) 64,555
Interest 67,487 55,740 48,177
Amortization 450,397 448,257 330,512

$ 2,249,273 $ 2,215,255 $ 2,331,416

Water and sewer services
Water System

Administration $ 264,380 $ 247,194 $ 228,855
Purification maintenance and treatment 233,800 232,276 137,333
Source of supply - purchase of water - 1,365 1,629
Transmission and distribution 100,900 103,064 114,168
Power and pumping 48,400 37,506 40,613
Billing and collecting 3,000 1,323 964

650,480 622,728 523,562
Sewer System

Administration 586,860 603,983 544,285
Sewer collection system 82,800 100,825 54,403
Sewer lift stations 34,400 27,669 17,216
Treatment and disposal 75,200 76,348 79,101
Loss on disposal of tangible capital asset - 8,754 -

779,260 817,579 695,005
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2014

28. REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE SUPPORT (cont'd)

Interest 256,824 256,463 258,390
Amortization 735,000 735,544 671,029

991,824 992,007 929,419

$ 2,421,564 $ 2,432,314 $ 2,147,986
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ROTHESAY 
MEMORANDUM 

             
TO  : John Jarvie 
FROM  : Doug MacDonald 
DATE  : April 9, 2015 
RE  : MCBB Application 
             
 
The 2015 Utility Capital Plan includes a project for the expansion of the water system 
along Gondola Point Road.  
 
The project consists generally of the installation of 800 metres of new 200 mm 
watermain on Gondola Point Road (Civic 180 to civic 288) including all valves, hydrants, 
bends and appurtenances.  The newly installed watermain will function primarily as a 
transmission main to connect the extremities of the east and west Rothesay water 
systems which now (dead) end at civic # 180 and Civic # 288 respectively.  These dead 
ends require periodic flushing to maintain water quality and do not allow for operational 
flexibility if the upstream system incurs pressure loss.  Installing the new transmission 
main will eliminate wasting water through flushing and allow the system to be fed bi-
directionally up the nearest valve of any failure or interruption causing pressure loss in 
the system.   The transmission line will have the required capacity to feed individual 
services along Gondola Point Road between Civic # 180 and Civic #288 should property 
owners express an interest in connecting to the municipal system. 
 
The expansion will result in the property owners between the civic addresses the option 
of connecting to Town water and/or the imposition of a fixed water charge of $47.70 per 
quarter should they choose not to connect to the system. 
 
As part of the application process we must submit our capital plan and financial 
projections for the next five years indicating the effect on utility expenditures, debt levels, 
utility rates, etc. assuming all items in the capital plan proceed.  We must demonstrate 
our capacity to fund the projects as planned. 
 
I have attached the capital plan summary (including the summary of funding 
sources) – see Item A -as well as the “Debt Profile and Budget Projections”  - see 
Item B - that will be submitted in support of the debt application. 
 
The capital plan includes significant sewer system upgrades in multiple phases.  
These phases are dependent upon receipt of financial support from other levels 
of Government.  While these projects are only expected to proceed when, or if, 
that support is confirmed, for projection purposes we must include the projects 
are currently envisioned. 
 
The budget projections assume a 4% growth in operating expenditures and a 
loan interest rate of 5%.  Should the assumptions be incorrect there would be a 
material impact on the projections and on our ability to fund all the capital plans. 
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ROTHESAY 
TO: John Jarvie 
FROM: Doug MacDonald 
RE: MCBB Borrowing Application -2- April 9, 2015 

 
 
 
 
The Finance Committee did not have sufficient numbers to hold an official 
meeting however the application has been discussed with those available.  I 
recommend the following motion to Council to be considered at its next meeting 
April 13, 2015. 
 
 RESOLUTION FOR APPLICATION TO MCBB 
 
 Be it resolved that the Municipality of ROTHESAY submit to the 
Municipal Capital Borrowing Board an application for authorization to 
borrow money in an amount not to exceed $350,000 for the following: 
 
 Purpose     Term   Amount 
 
NAME OF FUND:  Utility 
Water system expansion    10 YRS  $350,000 
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Subject: April Council meeting.
Date: April-01-15 11:32:34 AM

I would like to include 2 motions on the agenda for the April Council meeting
 
 
A) Snow clearing and winter safety
 
Due to the nature of the winter, keeping the streets clear has been a challenge. While staff is
 to be commended for the results they achieved, there are some issues which come out of this
 year’s experiences which should be looked at before the start of the next snow season.
 
I live at the top of Appleby Drive which is a hilly and winding street. Many parts of this street
 at different times are down to one and a half lanes or even 1 lane at times. I understand there
 was an auto collision on one of the turns recently. This street is the path to the school bus on
 the Rothesay Road for several school children who live on the hill and  the blind curves and
 narrow streets make for a very dangerous pathway as indicated by the above mentioned car
 accident.
 
The Town has 4 sidewalk plows/snow blowers to keep the sidewalks cleared for pedestrians
 and since the streets are the sidewalks for those streets not having actual sidewalks, I believe
 the Town has to some up with a strategy to keep the streets plowed to their full width and to
 lessen the blind spots.
 
I would move that Town staff be asked to prepare a report for Council on the snow clearing
 results for this year and how the above concerns might be addressed for future years.
 
 
 
 
B) Use of Commons Artificial Ice
 
Due to the fact that an earlier motion to include skirmish hockey as an activity on the new
 commons artificial ice surface was defeated and that subsequent minutes and discussions on
 the matter suggest that it will be an “approved” activity,I believe that Council should give a
 clear direction on this issue before the design is completed and construction of the project
 commences. While I was assured at an earlier Council meeting that the design would not be
 impacted if hockey was included in the activities,I feel this issue should be clarified before
 construction commences and accordingly, I move that Council direct the Town Recreation
 Department to include skirmish hockey as one of the scheduled activities to be permitted on
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 the renovated commons artificial ice surface and that the plans for the construction take this
 activity into account.
 
Blair R MacDonald
Councilor, Town of Rothesay
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